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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Member of
Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

Deloitte & Touche LLP
One PPG Piace, Suite 2600
Pittsburgh, PA 15222-5433
USA

Tel: +t 412 338 7200
www.deloitte.com

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC (the

"Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related

statements of income and comprehensive income, member's equity, and cash flows for the years then

ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes

the design., implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

M~mbcr of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 4imited
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC as of December 3 l , 2015 and 2014, and the

results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Apri128, 201.6

-2-



PEOPLES NATURAL GAS COMPANY LLC

BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

2015 2014

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,373 $ 3,259

Accounts receivable:
Customers (less allowance for doubtful accounts of
$15,614 and $17,887 for 2015 and 201, respectively) 95,946 141,048

Other 4,080 4,074

Affiliates 1.,439 1,104

Inventories:
Materials and supplies 3,008 2,823

Gas stored-current pot-tion 18,092 38,089

Regulatory assets 9,984 18,859

Deferred income taxes 16,258 6,656

Other 12,261 15,491

Total current assets 163,441 231,403

INVESTMENTS-Other 2,551 1,800

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Property, plant and equipment 2,210,496 2,120,343

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (787,657) (751,011)

Total property, plant and equipment-net 1,422,839 1,369,332

DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS:
Goodwill 284,895 284,895

Intangible assets-net 65,040 62,341

Regulatory assets 140,369 116,136

Debt issuance costs 6,282 7,953

Other 2~g 21 ~

Total deferred charges and other assets 496,864 471,542

TOTAL $ 2,085,695 $ 2,074,077

(Continued)
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PEOPLES NATURAL GAS COMPANY LAC

BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
2015 2014

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable:
Trade $ 77,227 $ 80,437

Affiliates 1,596 2,205

Demand note payable to affiliate (Note 7) 50,258 1.09,726

Interest payable to affiliates 4,995 6,860

Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 32,022 28,896

Regulatory liabilities 25,618 2,241

Other _ 16,311 15,977

Total current liabilities 208,027 246,342

LONG-TERM DEBT-Note payable to affiliates (Note 7) 787,895 787,895

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES:
Deferred income taxes 163,856 109,601

Asset retirement obligations 36,815 36,778
Pension and other nostretirement benefit liabilities 29,726 41,416

Capital lease obligation 18,523 18,951

Voluntary retirement program 9,699 -
Other 6,240 6,818

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 264,859 213,564

Total liabilities 1,260,781 1,247,801

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 11)

MEMBER'S EQUITY:
Member's equity 824,914 826,276

Accumulated other comprehensive loss - -

Total member's equity 824,914 826,276

TOTAL $ 2,085,695 $ 2,0~ 74,077

See notes to financial statements. (Concluded)
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PEOPLES NATURAL GAS COMPANY LLC

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

2015 2014

OPERATING REVENUE $ 716,125 $ 835,452

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Purchased gas 309,093 399,655

Other operations and maintenance 179,777 187,665

Depreciation and amortization 60,445 58,755

Other taxes 10,714 10,523

Total operating expenses 560,029 656,598

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 156,096 178,854

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)---Net (5,638) (2,179)

INTEREST CHARGES 36,706 41,082

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 113,752 135,593

Ui~l~1VTCT(11~T F(1R T1~T(~CIMF. TAXF.0 29,114 50,613

NET INCOME 84,638 84,980

COMPREHENSIVE GAIN (LOSS}—Changes in net unrecognized

pension and other postretirement benefit costs—net of taxes of
$67 in 2014 - 95

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 84,638 $ 84,885

See notes to financial statements.
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PEOPLES NATURAL GAS COMPANY LL.0

STATEMENTS OF MEMBER'S EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

BALANCE—December 31, 2013

Net income

Reclassify EGC AOCI to regulatory asset

Dividends paid to member

BALANCE—December 31, 2014

Net income

Dividends paid to member

BALANCE—December 31, 2015

See notes to financial statements.

Accumulated
Other

Member's Comprehensive
Equity Income (Loss)

$ 818,796 $ 95

84,980 -

- (95)

77,500

826,276

84,63 8

86,000

$ 824,914 $ -

Total

$ 818,891

84,980

(95)

77,500

826,276

84,638

86,000

$ 824,914



PEOPLES NATURAL GAS COMPANY LAC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

2015 2014

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income $ 84,638 $ 84,980

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 60,445 58,755

Amortization of debt issuance costs 2,104 2,498

Deferred provision for income taxes 7,441 30,823

Changes in:

Accounts receivable-net 44,762 3,358

Inventories 19,812 (215)

Regulatory asset liability-net 27,303 (790)

Prepayments 612 (6,530)

Gas imbalances 2,766 (4,456)

Unallocated defined contribution plan assets - 6,220

Accounts payable (3,347) (6,902)

Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 10,959 322

Other 1,387 (11g)

Net cash provided by operating activities 258,882 167,945

INVESTING ACTIVITIES-Plant construction and other property additions 11( 3>4gl) 96,626

Net cash used in investing activities 11( 3,481) 96,626

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Borrowings (repayments) under affiliated demand note-net (59,468) 9,511

Capital lease obligation (386) (2,847)

Payment of debt issuance costs (433)

Dividends paid to member 86,000 77,500

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 146,287 70,836

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (886) 483

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-Beginning of year 3,259 2,776

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-End of year $ 2,373 $ 3,259

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION-Cash paid during the year for:

Interest and related charges-excluding capitalized amounts $ 22,687 $ 39,187

Significant noncash investing activity-accrued capital expenditures $ 7,351 $ 6,464

See notes to financial statements.
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PEOPLES NATURAL GAS COMPANY LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF, AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED, DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(Dollar amounts are shown in thousands)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC (the "Company"), a Pennsylvania limited liability company, is a

wholly owned, direct subsidiary of PNG Companies LLC ("Parent"), which is wholly owned by LDC

Holdings LLC and, subsequently, LDC Funding LLC. The ultimate parent in the ownership chain is

SteelRiver Infrastructure Fund North America LP (SRIFNA) and an affiliated fund. The Company is

primarily a natural gas distribution utility operating in Pennsylvania.

The terms "Company," "we," and "us" are used throughout this report and all represent the Company.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis

of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America (GAAP).

General—We make certain estimates and assumptions in preparing our financial statements that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods presented.

Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Accounting for Regulated Operations—The accounting for our regulated gas operations differs from

the accounting for nonregulated operations in that we are required to reflect the effect of rate regulation

in our• financial statements. For regulated businesses subject to federal or state cost-of-service rate

regulation, regulatory practices that assign costs to accounting periods may differ from accounting

methods generally applied by nonregulated companies. When it is probable that regulators will permit

the recovery of current costs through future rates charged to customers, we defer these costs as

regulatory assets that otherwise would be expensed by nonregulated companies. Likewise, we recognize

regulatory liabilities when it is probable that regulators will require customer refunds through future

rates or when revenue is collected from customers for expenditures that are not yet incurred. Regulatory

assets are amortized into expense and regulatory liabilities are amortized into income over the period

authorized by the regulator.

We evaluate whether or not recovery of our regulatory assets through future regulated rates is probable

and make various assumptions in our analyses. The expectations of future recovery are generally based

on orders issued by regulatory commissions or historical experience, as well as discussions with

applicable regulatory authorities. If recovery of a regulatory asset is determined to be less than probable,

it will be written off and an expense will be recorded in the period such assessment is made.
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Operating Revenue--Operating revenue is recorded on the basis of services rendered, commodities

delivered, or contracts settled, and includes amounts yet to be billed to customers. Our receivables from

customers at December 31, 2015 and 2014, included $35,429 and $59,724, respectively, of accrued

unbilled revenue, based on estimated amounts of natural gas delivered, but not yet billed, to our utility

customers. We estimate utility unbilled revenue based on historical usage, applicable customer rates, and

weather factors.

The primary types of sales and service activities reported as operating revenue include:

• Regulated gas sales consist primarily ofstate-regulated retail natural gas sales and related

distribution services;

• Nonregulated gas sales consist primarily of sales of natural gas purchased from third parties at

market-based rates and contracted fixed pt~ices;

• Gas transportation and storage consists primarily of regulated sales of gathering, transmission,

distribution, and storage services. Also included are regulated gas distribution charges to retail

distribution service customers opting for alternate suppliers; and

• Other revenue consists primarily of miscellaneous service revenue from gas distribution operations,

gas processing and handling revenue, sales of natural gas at market-based rates and contracted fixed

prices, sales of gas purchased from third parties, and other gas marketing activities.

Unrecovered Gas Costs—The differences between actual purchased gas expenses and the levels of

recovery for these expenses in current rates are deferred and matched against recoveries in future

periods. The deferral of costs in excess of current period recovery is recognized as a regulatory asset and

~la~~ifiecl as ~~nrec~vered gas costs. while the recovery of revenue in excess of current period expenses is

recognized as a regulatory liability and classified as amounts payable to customers.

Income Taxes—The Company is asingle-member limited liability company treated as a disregarded

entity for United States federal and Pennsylvania state income tax purposes. The Company's taxable

income or loss is included in the fedet•al and state tax returns filed by LDC Funding LLC. The Company

calculates its share of the federal and state tax expense and benefits of LDC Funding LLC based on the

amounts that would be reported if it were to file tax returns on aseparate-company basis.

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 740,

Income Taxes, requires an asset and liability approach to accounting for income taxes. Deferred income

tax assets and liabilities are provided, representing future effects on income taxes for temporary

differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax purposes. Where

permitted by regulatory authorities, the treatment of temporary differences may differ from the

requirements of ASC 740. For those temporary differences, a regulatory asset is recognized if it is

probable that future revenues will be provided for the payment of deferred tax liabilities, as a result, only

a provision for the current tax expense is included in the determination of net income. The Company has

not identified any uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2015.

~''



We establish a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that all, or a portion, of a deferred tax

asset will not be realized. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, no valuation allowances were considered

necessary. Judgment and the use of estimates are required in developing the provision for income taxes

and reporting oftax-related assets and liabilities. The interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty,

since tax authorities may interpret the laws differently. Ultimate resolution of income tax matters may

result in favorable or unfavorable impacts to net income and cash flows, and adjustments to tax-related

assets and liabilities could be material.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company realized a $15.2 million deferred tax benefit in

connection with recent IRS guidance received by the Company regarding the Company's disposition of

certain utility assets in 2013. The 2013 transaction included a partial like-kind exchange of assets that

resulted in tax defet•ral for the Company. However, in order to be in compliance with the normalization

rules of the Internal Revenue Code, the IRS guidance held that the deferred tax liability associated with

the exchanged regulatory assets should not be considered for ratemaking purposes. As a result, during

2015 the Company recorded a regulatory asset equal to the taxes deferred from the exchange and an

associated income tax benefit. The regulatory asset and deferred income taxes will be reversed when the

utility assets are disposed of in a taxable transaction such as a sale or amortized over the remaining book

lives of the utility assets received in the exchange; in either event increasing tax expense at that time.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Current banking arrangements genet~ally do not require checks to be

funded until actually presented for payment. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, accounts payable

included $6,057 and $5,125, respectively, of checks outstanding but not yet presented for payment. For

purposes of our statements of cash flows, we consider cash and cash equivalents to include cash on

hand, cash in banks and temporary investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or

less.

i.,~P.,t~r~p.~—Materials anci ~upnlies inventories are valued using the weighted-average cost method.

The Company has stored gas inventory under the weighted-average cost method, which is valued at

$15,764 and $33,833 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Company also has stored gas

inventory used in local gas distribution operations that is valued using the last-in, first-out

(LIFO) method. Under the LIFO method, those inventories were valued at $2,328 and $4,256 at

December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Based on the average price of gas purchased during 2015

and 2014, the cost of replacing the current portion of stored gas inventory exceeded the amount stated on

a LIFO basis by approximately $19,2Q9 and $44,071, respectively. The use of two valuation methods for

stored gas inventories is necessitated by regulatory accounting. The two methods will continue to be

used until the commission orders a change.

Derivative Instruments—We use derivative instruments, such as futures, swaps, and forwards to

manage the commodity risks of our business operations.

ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, requires all derivatives, except those for which an exception

applies, to be reported on our balance sheets at fair value. Derivative contracts representing unrealized

gain positions are reported as derivative assets. Derivative contracts representing unrealized losses are

reported as derivative liabilities.

Derivative Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments—We hold certain nontrading

derivative instruments that are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes. However, to the extent

that we do not hold offsetting positions for such derivatives, we believe that these instruments represent

economic hedges that mitigate exposut•e to fluctuations in commodity prices. Any nontrading derivatives

not designated as hedges have been executed by order of regulatory bodies. The fair value changes of

those derivatives are deferred on our balance sheets as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability in
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accordance with ASC 980, Regulated Operations. Any unrealized changes in fair value and settlements

are presented in purchased gas expense in our statements of income and comprehensive income.

Recovery of these costs is discussed in the unrecovered gas costs section above.

We recognize revenue or expense from all nonderivative energy-related contracts on a gross basis at the

time of contract performance, settlement, or termination.

Valuation Methods—See Note 3 for further information about fair value measurements and associated

valuation methods for derivatives under ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement.

Property, Plant and Equipment—Property, plant, and equipment, including additions and

replacements, are recorded at original cost, including labor, materials, asset retirement costs, and other

direct and indirect costs, including capitalized interest. The cost of repairs and maintenance, including

minor additions and replacements, is charged to expense as incurred. In 2015 and 2014, we capitalized

interest costs of $186 and $228, respectively.

At retirement, the depreciable cost of property, plant, and equipment, less salvage value, is charged to

accumulated depreciation. Cost of removal collections from utility customers and expenditures not

representing asset retirement obligations ("AROs") are recorded as regulatory liabilities or regulatory

assets.

Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment is computed on the straight-line method, based on

projected service lives. In 2015 and 2014, depreciation expense was $47,400 and $48,372, respectively.

Intangible Assets—Intangible assets include predominately internal-use software and related costs

associated with the Company's computerized information systems. These costs have been capitalized in

accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other. In addition to the initial installation of the

Company's computerized information systems, new applications continue to be added and capitaiizeci
,

accordingly. Such assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of 10 years for major

systems and five years for other software applications. Related amortization expense was $13,045 and

$10,3 83 for 201.5 and 2014, respectively. Amortization expense for each of the next five years is as

follows:

Years Ending
December 31

2016 $ 10,671

2017 10,247

2018 8,661

2019 7,054

2020 6,900

Debt Issuance Costs—In accordance with ASC 310, Receivables, debt issuance costs were capitalized

at the time of incurrence and are being amortized into interest expense over the term of the debt

(Note 7).

Asset Retirement Obligations--We recognize AROs at fair value, as incurred, or when sufficient

information becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the retirement

activities to be performed. These amounts are capitalized as costs of the related tangible long-lived

assets. Since relevant market information is not available, we estimate fair value using discounted cas
h

flow analyses. We report the accretion of the AROs due to the passage of time in other operations and

maintenance expense.
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Impairment of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets--We perform an evaluation for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived assets or

intangible assets with finite lives may not be recoverable. Assets are wt•itten down to fair value if the

sums of their expected future undiscounted cash flows are less than their• carrying amounts.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as of October 31 for the Company, and whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired. There were no

impairments recorded in 2015 or 2014.

The carrying amounts of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as follows:

Balance as of January 1,
Accumulated impairment losses
Goodwill acquired

2015 2014

$ 284,895 $ 284,895

Balance as of December 31, $ 284,895 $ 284,895

Leasing Arrangements—The Company enters into leasing arrangements in the ordinary course of

business. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to expense over the term of the relevant

lease. For• capital leases, the present value of future minimum lease payments at the inception of the

lease is reflected as an asset and a liability in the balance sheets. Amounts due within one year
 are

classified as current liabilities and the remaining balance as long-term liabilities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements—In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Reven
ue

From Contracts With Customers, which outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to 
use in

accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. The ABU supersedes mosi curreni

revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The guidance is effective 
for annual

reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The adoption of this guidance is not expecte
d to

have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

In Apri12015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuanc
e Costs

("ASU 2015-03"). ASU 2015-03 requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance s
heet as a

direct deduction from the associated debt liability. ASU 2015-03 is effective for annual reporting p
eriods

after December 15, 2015. The new guidance will be applied on a retrospective basis and early
 adoption

is permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2015-03 to have a significant imp
act

on the Company's financial statements.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Income

Tax, which revises accounting guidance to simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes. This

update requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in the consolidated

balance sheet. The new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after Decembe
r 15,

2018. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's

financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which brings substantially all leases o
nto the

balance sheet. This update requires the recognition of lease assets and liabilities for those leases

currently classifed as operating leases, while also refining the definition of a lease. The new g
uidance is

effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company 
is currently

evaluating the impact that the adoption of the standard will have on its financial statements.
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3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, dunes fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset

or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date.

We utilize the following fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to

measure fair value, into three broad levels:

Level 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that we have the

ability to access at the measurement date. Instruments categorized in Level 1 are valued at the active

quoted market price from broker or dealer quotations or transparent pricing sources at the reporting date.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no Level 1 instruments.

Level 2—Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either dit~ectly or indirectly

observable for the asset or liability, including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active

mat•kets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive mat~kets, inputs other than

quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and inputs that are derived from observable

market data by correlation or other means. Leve12 measurements primarily represent long-term debt at

December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, including situations where there is little, if any,

market activity for the asset or liability. Instruments categorized in Leve13 would consist of long-dated

commodity derivatives and other modeled commodity derivatives. At December 31, 2015 and 2014,

there were no Leve13 instruments.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2, or 3 during the course of 2015 or 2014. If there were any

such instances, a transfer would be reported at the beginning of the reporting period. While the

Company believes that its valuation methods used to assess the classification of financial instruments

within the hierarchy are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or assumptions could result in a

change in a financial instrument's fair value tier from year to year.

Book Fair Value

At December 31, 2015 Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities:

Long-term debt:

Notes payable:

Fixed $669,770 $ - $684,832 $ - $684,832

Variable 168,383 - 168,383 - 168,383

Total liabilities $838,153 $ - $853,215 $ - $853,215

Book Fair Value

At December 31, 2014 Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities:
Long-Germ debt:
NoCes payable:

Fixed $787,895 $ - $822,508 $ - $822,508

Variable 109,726 - 109,726 - 109,726

Total liabilities $897,621 $ - $932,234 $ - $932,234
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4. INCOME TAXES

Details of the Company's income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as

follows:

2015 2014

Current:
Federal $ 14,102 $ 15,680

State 7,570 4,110

Total current 21,672 19,790

Deferred:
Federal 10,227 28,630

State 2,785 2,193

Total deferred 7,442 30,823

Total income tax expense $ 29,114 $ 50,613

The statutory U.S. federal income tax rate reconciles to our effective income tax rate for the years
 ended

December 31, 2015 and 2014, as follows:

2015 2014

U.S. statutory rate
Increases (reductions j resui~;iig ~-o~;,:

Utility plant differences
Private letter ruling
State tax items
Employee benefits
Other

Effective tax rate

35.0 % 35.0

(1.5) (1.9)
(13.4) -

4.2 4.6
1.1 0.1
0.2 0.5

25.6 % 37.3
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.

Our net deferred income taxes at December 31, 2015 and 2014, consist of the following:

2015 2014

Postretirement benefits $ 1,207 $ 279

Miscellaneous benefits (11,930) (7,767)

Other 12,804 8,317

Depreciation method and plant-basis differences 186,989 145,836

Inventory (281) (281)

Income taxes collected through rates 22,819 22,165

Unrecovered purchased gas costs 8,523 22,078

Bad debts (10,779) (11,329)

Pension benefits (6,242) (8,876)

Net operating loss 55,512 6( 7,477)

Total net deferred income tax liabilities 147,598 102,945

Net short-term deferred tax asset 16,258 6,656

Net long-term deferred tax liability $ 163,856 $ 109,601

At December 31, 2015, we had federal loss carryforwards of $138,464 and state loss carryforwards of

$108,SS5 that begin to expire ifunutilized in 2031. There are no uncertain tax positions as of

December 31, 2015.

.`~. i ~vDiDi~i~ 
Di~~iivT~ ~r:n ~~iTTPMTNT ANiI iNTANf TRi,F A~~F,T

Major classes of utility property, plant, and equipment and their respective balances at December 31,

2015 and 2014, are as follows:

2015 2014

Transmission
Distribution
Storage
Gas gathering and processing
General and other
Plant under construction

Total property, plant and equipment

$ 158,440 $ 152,375
1,795,871 1,719,535

13,569 13,436
ll2,715 111,672
121,808 115,989

8,093 7,336

$ 2,210,496 $ 2,120,343

Details of our intangible assets at December 31, 201 S and 2014, were as follows:

2015 2014

Internal-use software
Less-accumulated amortization

Intangible assets-net

$ 101,866 $ 90,443
36,826 28,102

$ 65,040 $ 62,341

-15-



6. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LJABILITIES

Regulatory assets and liabilities at December 31, 2015 and 2014, include the following:

2015 2014

Regulatory assets:
Unrecovered gas costs $ - $ 15,592

Other 9,984 3,267

Regulatory assets—current 9,984 18,859

Income taxes recoverable through future rates 83,533 52,035

Asset retirement obligations 39,675 38,604

Pension/OPEB unrecognized funding costs 2,411 10,468

Other l 4,750 15,029

Regulatory assets—non-current 140,369 116,136

Total regulatory assets $ 150,353 $ 134,995

Regulatory liabilities:
Deferred gas—amounts payable to customers $ 23,213 $ -

Other 2,405 2,241.

Regulatory liabilities—current 25,618 2,241

Re~ulatory liabilities—non-current - -

Total regulatory liabilities $ 25,618 $ 2,241

The regulatory assets are expected to be recovered in rates charged to customers. The Company's

regulatory assets are not earning a return; however, these regulatory assets are expected to be recovered

from customers in future rates.

If, for any reason, the Company's regulated businesses cease to meet the criteria for application of

regulatory accounting for all or part of its operations, the regulatory assets and liabilities relating to those

portions ceasing to meet such criteria would be removed from the balance sheet and included in the

statements of income as an extraordinary item in the period in which the discontinuance of regulatory

accounting occurs.

7. RELATED-PARTY DEBT ACTIVITIES

The Company engages in related-party transactions for debt and the interest and fees associated with

such debt.
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As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had long-term notes payable to affiliates consisting of

the following:

Company Type Rates Issue Dates Due Dates 2015 2014

Peoples Natural Gas Co.

current portion of note Long-term note 2.43%-5.53% 2010-2013 2017-2025 $669,770 $787,895

to affiliate Long-term note Variable 2015 2018 118,125

Total affiliated long-term debt $787,895 $787,895

Peoples Nahiral Gas Co. Demand note Variable 2013 2016 $ 50,258 $109,726

Demand Note--On August 22, 2013, the Company entered into an Intercompany Pt~omissory Note

("Note") with its Parent. Under the terms of the Note, the Company was permitted to borrow and/or

issue letters of credit up to a total commitment of $300,000 and is payable on demand. At December 31,

2015 and 2014, outstanding borrowings under the Note were $50,258 and $109,726 and outstanding

letters of credit totaled $3,331 and $2,961, respectively. Under the terms of the agreement, interest rate

options include either London InterBank Offet•ed Rates or the administrative agent bank's prime interest

rate, plus an applicable margin based upon the Parent's credit rating and the Parent's Revolving Credit

Agreement. Commitment fees on the unused portion of the related commitment are also payable under

this agreement.

Long-Term Note—Under the Intercompany Promissory Note dated February 26, 2010, the amount of

$388,395, outstanding principal was issued in connection with the Peoples purchase. The funding

available to Peoples in connection with this intercompany note is dependent upon the Parent's

compliance with its Note Purchase Agreement dated February 26, 2010 ("2010 Note Agreement"). The

Parent ~mm~any refinanced $118.125 of the initial $388,395 on February 26, 2015. The due date of the

refinanced debt is February 19, 2018.

Under the Intercompany Promissory Note dated December 31, 2013, the amount of $399,500,

outstanding principal was issued in connection with the EGC purchase. The funding available to Peoples

in connection with this intercompany note is dependent upon the Parent's compliance with its

Note Purchase Agreement dated December 12, 2013 ("2013 Note Agreement").

As of December 31, 2015, the aggregated future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Years Ending
December 31

2016 ~ -

2017 243,971

2018 118,125

2019 -

2020 171,044

Thereafter 254,755

Total $ 787,895

The unamortized balances of debt issuance costs were $6,282 and $7,953 at December 31, 2015 and

2014, respectively. Total debt issuance costs amortized or expensed as interest expense during 2015 and

2014 were $2,104 and $2,498, respectively.
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Surety Bonds—As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had purchased $5,796 and $6,869, respectively,

of surety bonds to facilitate commercial transactions with third parties.

8. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Our AROs are primarily associated with the interim retirements of natural gas gathering, transmission,

distribution, production wells and storage pipeline components. These obligations result from certain

safety and environmental activities that we are required to perform when any pipeline is abandoned. We

also have AROs related to the retirement of the gas storage wells in our underground natural gas storage

network. We currently do not have sufficient information to estimate a reasonable range of expected

retirement dates for any of these wells. Thus, AROs for those assets will not be reflected in our financial

statements until sufficient information becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate of the fair

value of the activities to be performed. Generally, this will occur when the expected retirement or

abandonment dates are determined by our operations engineering department. The changes to our AROs

during 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014

Total asset retirement obligations—January 1 $ 38,241. $ 39,347

Liabilities incurred 43 15

Obligations settled during the period (2,276) (3,346)

Accretion expense 2,304 2,225

Total asset retirement obligations—December 31 38,312 38,241

Less: current portion 1,497 1,463

Iv on-curreni assei reiireiiicii~ vu,;gat;ors—L~c~,~~~e: 31 $ 3~ R~ 5 ~ 3h 77R,.. _..

9. VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

In the fourth quarter of 2015, the Company announced aone-time Voluntary Retirement Program

(VRP), which was offered to eligible union and salaried employees who had 10 years of service and

were at least 55 years of age by April 1, 2016. The union offer was contingent on the ratification of a

new collective bargaining agreement, which was subsequently ratified in April 2016. (Note 12).

Participants' last day of work will occur as late as October 1, 2016. 82 union and 42 salaried employee
s

elected to participate in this program. The Company offered each eligible union employee severance o
f

$108, which will be paid equally over a 24-month period. Each eligible salaried employee will receive

50% of the employee's current monthly salary for a period of 24 months. The Company will also pay

100% of health insurance premiums for the employee and dependents, payable over a period of

36 months for union and 24 months for salaried employees, beginning with the employee's retirement

date. The Company recorded a total VRP liability of $13,380 during 2015, all of which was reflected i
n

Other Operations and Maintenance.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company provides certain benefits to eligible active employees, retirees, and qualifying dependent
s.

Under the terms of our benefit plans, the Company reserves the right to change, modify, or terminate the

plans, unless restricted by collective bargaining. From time to time in the past, benefits have changed,

and some of these changes have reduced benefits.
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Strategic investment policies are established for each of the Company's prefunded benefit plans based

upon periodic asset/liability studies. Factors considered in setting the investment policy include

employee demographics, liability growth rates, future discount rates, the funded status of the plans, cash

disbursement requirements, and the expected long-term rate of return on plan. assets. Deviations from the

plans' strategic allocation are a function of short-term, actual investment results in the capital markets

and/or short-term mat~ket movements, which result in the plans' actual asset allocations varying from the

strategic target asset allocations. Through periodic rebalancing, actual allocations are brought back in

line with the target.

Our overall objective for investing our pension and other postretirement plan assets is to achieve the best

possible long-term rates of return commensurate with prudent levels of risk. To minimize risk, funds are

broadly diversified among asset classes, investment strategies, and investment advisors.

The Company uses December 31 as the measurement date for all of the Company's employee benefit

plans. The Company uses the market-related value of pension plan assets to determine the expected

return on plan assets, a component of net periodic pension cost. The market-related value recognizes

changes in fair value on a straight-line basis over afour-year period, which reduces year-to-year

volatility. Changes in fair value are measured as the difference between the expected and actual plan

asset returns, including dividends, interest, and realized and unrealized investment gains and losses.

Since the market-related value recognizes changes in fair value over afour-year period, the future

market-related value of pension plan assets will be impacted as previously unrecognized changes in fair

value are recognized.

Defined Benefit Plans—The Company provides pension benefits for eligible employees, the provision

of which is based upon certain factors such as job group and hire date. Retirement benefits payable

under all plans are based on certain factors, including hire date, years of service, age, and compensation.

The Company's contributions to the plans are determined in accordance with the provisions of the

Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as well as commitments under rate cases.

The accumulated benefit obligations for the Company's defined benefit pension plans were $80,537 and

$87,066 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Under our funding policies, we evaluate plan

funding requirements annually, usually in the fourth quarter after considering updated plan information

from our actuaries. Based on the funded status of the plan and other factors, we determine the amount of

contributions for the current year, if any, at that time.

Effective December 31, 2015, the Company's defined benefit pension plan was amended to freeze the

accrual of benefits, with the exception of certain union participants.

Postretirement Benefits—The Company also provides limited postretirement health care benefits and

life insurance benefits ("Postretirement Benefits") for employees, the provisions of which are based

upon certain factors, such as job group and hire date.

Retiree health care and life insurance benefits are provided for the Company's union and salaried

employee groups through separately administered other postretirement benefit plans. Annual premiums

for both programs are negotiated as part of the Company's group policies and are dependent upon

market trends and overall group experience. Annual employee contributions are based on several factors,

such as age, retirement date, and years of service.
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The Company has established a Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association (VEBA) trust for its

Postretirement Benefits. Contributions to the VEBA trust are tax deductible, subject to limitations

contained in the Internal Revenue Code, and are made to fund employees' Postretirement Benefits. In

accordance with ratemaking standards recognized by the PA Public Utility Commission, the Company

deposits, into an irrevocable trust, amounts equal to the postretirement benefits expenses determined in

accordance with authoritative guidance for postretirement benefit plans. The trust's assets will be used

for the payment of Postretirement Benefits and trust administration costs.

The post retirement benefit plan was amended, effective December 31, 2015. Salaried active employees

hired before January 1, 2008 were converted to a medical savings account (MSA) of $700 for each year

of service through 2015 and retired medical benefits were frozen for active Salaried employees hired 4n

or after January 1, 2008. In addition, t•etiree life insurance was discontinued as of December 31, 2015,

with the exception of current retirees. At the end of 2015, eligible participants were given the option to

retire as part of a Voluntary Retirement Program (VRP) during the first half of 2016. Those who elect to

participate in the VRP will receive retiree medical benefits fully paid by the Company for a period of

two years. After two years, employees hired before January 1, 2008 receive subsidized coverage unti
l

age 65.
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The following tables summarize the changes in the Company's defined benefit and other postretirement

benefit plan obligations and plan assets, fair value measurements, components of net periodic benefit

costs, and expected payments of future service:

Periods Ended December 31

Defined Benefits

2015 2014

Other Postretirement

Benefits

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation-beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost
Benefits paid
Participant contributions

Curtailment gain

Special termination benefits
Actuarial (gain) loss during the year

Benefit obligation---end of year

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets-beginning of year

Actual return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Expenses paid

Benefits paid
Participant contributions

Fair value of plan assets-end of year

r u;~ded status-~;,U ;,; -yea;

Amounts Recognized in the Balance Sheet

as of December 31

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Net amount recognized

2015 2014

$ 94,634 $ 76,684 $ 38,772 $ 33,347

2,215 1,818 2,619 2,4p2

3,819 3,633 1,430 1,421

(4,891) (4,239) (2,495) (2,282)

- - 1,069 78

(6,464) - (991) -

- - 3,714 -

8,637 16,738 (7,324) 3,807

80,676 94,634 36,794 38,773

72,370 71,270 18,421 14,473

(3,261) 4,723 (761) 751

740 740 5,099 5,401

(207) (124) - -

(4,891) (4,239) (2,494) (2,282)

- - 1,069 78

64,751 72,370 21,334 18,421

(i S,9?51 ~ ~22.2F41 $ (15,4601 $ (20,352)

$ - $ - $ (1,660) $ (1,199)

1( 5,925) 2( 2,264) 1( 3,800) 1( 9,153)

$(15,925 $ 2( 2,264) $ 15,460 $ 2~ 0,352

Significant Assumptions Used to Determine

Benefit Obligations as of December 31

Discount rate
Weighted-average rate of increase for compensation

4.63 % 4.28 % 3.96 % 3.73

3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75
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Periods Ended December 31

Fair value measurements:
Level 1:
Cash equivalents
Equity
Fixed income

Subtotal

Level 2-fixed income
Level 3

Defined Benefits
Other Postretirement

Benefits
2015 2014 2015 2014

$ 1,815 $ 1,470 $ 6,926 $ 6,127
39,525 44,044 4,514 3,983
15,722 17,434 9,894 8,311

57,062 62,948 21,334 18,421

7,593 9,422 - -

Fair value $ 64,655 $ 72,370 $ 21,334 $18,421

Components of net periodic benefit costs:
Service cost $ 2,398 $ 2,267 $ 2,619 $ 2,402

Interest cost 3,819 3,633 1,430 1,421

Expected return on plan assets (4,431) (4,704). (828) (648)

Curtailment gain - - (991) -

Special termination benefits - - 3,714

Amortization of prior service cost
Amortization of net (gain) loss 613 - 37 (183)

Amortization of transition assets

Net periodic benefit cost $ 2,399 $ 1,196 $ 5,981 $ 2,992

Significant assumptions used to determine periodic cost:

Discount rate 4.63 % 5.18 % 3.96 % 3,73 °/a

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 6.37 6.81 4.37 4.49

Weighted-average rate of increase for compensation 3.75 3.75 3.75 530

Health care cost trend rate - - 5.00 5.00

Long-term asset allocation policy:
Equity 65 % 65

Debt j5 ~~

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in

regulatory assets (other comprehensive income) (Note 7):

Current year net actuarial (gain) loss $ (7,385) $16,395 $ (5,736) $ 3,703

Plan amendment
Amortization of actuarial loss 613 - (37) 183

Total recognized in regulatory assets (other
comprehensive income) (Note 7) $ 7,998 $16,395 $ 5,773 $ 3,886

Expected 2016 payments for defined benefit plans $ 698

Expected payments of future service:
2016 $ 4,547 $ 4,066

2017 4,873 4,419

2018 5, 118 4,302

2019 5,293 3,541

2020 5,467 3,590

2021-2025 29,675 15,591

401(k) Savings Plans-In addition to the defined benefit plans discussed previously, the Company has

various 401(k) savings plans for union and salaried employees. Under these 401(k) savings plans,

employees can make voluntary contributions into their individua1401(k) savings plan accounts. The

Company provides matching and non-elective employer contributions to the 401(k) savings plans, as

stipulated in the plan documents. During 2015 and 2014, the Company made contributions to

the 401(k) savings plans in the amounts of $5,270 and $4,446, respectively.
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Beginning in January 2016, the 401(k) savings plans will become the primary retirement savings tool.

Changes have been made to enhance benefits under the 401(k) savings plan in lieu of reduced and frozen

t•etirement benefits under the defined benefit and postretirement benefits as described above.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, we are involved in legal, tax, and regulatory proceedings before various courts,

regulatory commissions and governmental agencies. We believe that the final disposition of these

proceedings will not have a material effect on our financial position, liquidity, or results of operations.

Lease Commitments—We lease various facilities and equipment under operating leases, Futut~e

minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases that have initial or remaining lease

terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2015, are as follows:

Years Ending
December 31

2016 $ 5,319

2017 5,290

2018 5,323

2019 5,368

2020 5,412

Thereafter 21,581

Total $ 48,293

Rental expense totaled $3,346 and $3,443 in 2015 and 2014, respectively, the majority of which is

reflected in other operations and maintenance expense.

Environmental Matters—We are subject to costs resulting from a steadily increasing number of

federal, state, and local laws and regulations designed to protect human health and the environment.

These laws and regulations affect future planning and existing operations and can result in increased

capital, operating, and other costs as a result of our compliance, remediation, containment, and

monitoring obligations. We may sometimes seek recovery ofenvironment-related expenditures through

regulatory proceedings.

We have determined that we previously owned four parcels of land that may have been associated with

former manufactured gas plant sites. None of the four parcels is under investigation by any state or

federal environmental agency, and no investigation or action is currently anticipated.

Long-Term Gas Supply Obligations—The retail gas supply of the Company is provided by sources on

the interstate pipeline system and from local western Pennsylvania gas well production. The Company

has various interstate pipeline service agreements that provide for firm transportation capacity, firm

storage capacity, and other services and include capacity reservation charges based upon the maximum

daily and annual contract quantities set forth in the agreements. These agreements have minimum

volume obligations and are transacted at applicable tariff and negotiated rates for periods of up to

20 years.

Investments—Other—In September 2014, the Company committed to invest $3,000 in a regional site

development fund. An investment of $1,051 has been made through 2015, with a commitment of $1,949

remaining.
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12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with ASC 855, Subsequent Events, the Company has evaluated events through Apri128,

2016, the date that these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

In Apri12016, the Company reached a new three-year labor contract agreement with our respective field

unions. The three-year agreement includes a competitive wage and benefits package

*****~
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Member of PNG Companies LLC

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

Deloitte & Touche LLP
One PPG Place, Suite 2600
Pittsburgh, PA 15222-5433
USA

Tel: +1 412 338 7200
www.deloitte.com

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PNG Companies LLC and its

subsidiaries (the "Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2015

and 201.4, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, member's

equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial

statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation

and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

A~~rli4~r~~ Q~~nnn~~h~~~4V
AMM~~V~P ~./v ~~

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control

relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no

such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

Member of
Deloitte 7ouche 7ohmatsu Limited



Opinion

In our' opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material

respects, the financial position of PNG Companies LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and

2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

l ~~0:..,~- ~ ~~.~.~. t~P

Apri128, 2016
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PNG COMPANIES LLC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
Customers (less allowance for doubtful accounts of
$15,984 and $18,058 for 20l 5 and 2014, respectively)
Other
Affiliates

Inventories:
Materials and supplies
Gas stored-current portion

Regulatory assets
Deferred income taxes
Other

Total current assets

INVESTMENTS-Other

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Property, plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total property, plant and equipment net

DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS:
Goodwill
Intangible assets-net
Regulatory assets
Debt issuance costs
Other

Total deferred charges and other assets

TOTAL

2015 2014

$ 8,257 $ 16,848

97,812 144,023
4,115 4,083
809 622

3,089 2,898
19,405 40, l 10
9,984 19,643
17,484 6,938
19,486 19,297

180,441 254,462

2,551 1,800

2,260,370 2,168,717
809,754 (772,590)

1,450,616 1,396,127

284,895 284,895
65,863 62,895
140,369 116,136
6,352 8,038
278 218

497,757 472,182

$2,131,365 $2,124,571

(Continued)
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PNG COMPANIES LLC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

~In thousands)

2015 2014

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable:
Trade $ 79,726 $ 83,432

Affiliates 1,105 239

Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 36,898 37,815

Regulatory liabilities 26,553 2,241

Other 18,281 17,430

Total current liabilities 162,563 141,157

LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 7) 852,000 922,000

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES:

Deferred income taxes 165,582 104,908

Asset retirement obligations 36,815 36,778

Pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities 31,187 43,610

Capital lease obligation 18,523 18,951

Vnliintary rPtirPmPnt nrnaram 9,699 -

Other 9,818 l 1,040

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 271,624 215,287

Total liabilities 1,286,187 1,278,444

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 11)

MEMBER' S EQUITY:
Member's equity 845,547 846,560

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (369) (433)

Total member's equity 845,178 846,127

TOTAL $2,131,365 $2,124,571

See notes to consolidated financial statements. (Concluded)
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PNG COMPANIES LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FqR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

2015 2014

OPERATING REVENUE $ 736,919 $ 859,237

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Purchased gas 317,095 409,841

Other operations and maintenance 185,704 193,748

Depreciation and amortization 61,392 60,143

Other taxes 11,622 12,109

Total operating expenses 575,813 675,841

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 161,106 183,396

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE}--Net (5,657) (2,200)

INTEREST CHARGES 39,286 42,650

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 116,163 138,546

7~7~l1~7TC~TlIAT L`!lD TT~T(`llT ifR TOYLC
1-l~V V 171 V1~ i~vt~ u~~virii v 29_$76 51,617

NET INCOME 86,287 86,929

COMPREHENSIVE GAIN (LOSS}—Changes in net unrecognized

pension and other postretirement benefit costs—net of taxes of

($214) and $281 in 2015 and 2014, respectively 338 (442)

COMPREHENSIVE GAIN (LOSS)--Change in fair value of cash

flow hedges—net of taxes of $194 and $ - in 2015
and 2014, respectively (274) -

RECLASSIFY EGC AOCI TO REGULATORY ASSET - 95

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 86,351 $ 86,392

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PNG COMPANIES LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBER'S EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

BALANCE—December 31, 2013

Net income

Comprehensive gain:
Changes in unrecognized pension and
other postretirement benefit costs—net
of taxes of $281

Reclassify EGC AOCI to Regulatory Asset

Dividends paid to member

BALANCE—December 31, 2014

Net income

Comprehensive gain:
Changes in unrecognized pension and
other postretirement benefit costs—net
of taxes of ($214)

Change in fair value of cash flow
hedges—net of taxes of $194

Dividends paid to member

BALANCE—December 31, 2015

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Accumulated
Other

Member's Comprehensive
Equity Income (Loss) Total

$ 833,231 $ 104 $ 833,335

86,929 - 86,929

- (442) (442)

- (95) (95)

73,600 - 7( 3,600)

846,560 (433) 846,127

86,287 - 86,287

- 338 338

- (274) (274)

87,300 - 87,300

$ 845,547 $~ $ 845,178



PNG COMPANIES LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

2015 2014

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income $ 86,287 $ 86,929

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 61,392 60,143

Amortization of debt issuance costs 2,119 2,517

Deferred provision for income taxes 11,595 34,171

Changes in:

Accounts receivable-net 45,991 5,073

Inventories 20,514 (161)

Regulatory asset/liability-net 28,965 (1,662)

Prepayments (2,804) (10,256)

Gas imbalances 2,766 (4,456)

Unallocated defined contribution plan assets - 6,220

Accounts payable (2,393) (6,658)

Accrued interest, payroll and taxes 10,083 (2,062)

Other 610 2,496

Net cash provided by operating activities 265,125 167,302

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Plant construction and other property additions (115,597) (99,140)

Acquisition of Equitable Gas Company, LLC - 5,553

Net cash used in investing activities 115,597 104,693

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Borrowings (repayments) under revolving credit agreement-net (70,000) 3,000

Capital lease obligation (386) (2,847)

Payment of debt issuance costs (433) -

Dividends paid to member 87,300 73,601

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 158,119 73,448

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (8,591) (10,839)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-Beginning of year 16,848 27,687

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-End of year $ 8,257 $ 16,848

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION-Cash paid during the

year for:
Interest and related charges-excluding capitalized amounts $ 23,346 $ 40,590

Significant noncash investing activity-accrued capital expenditures $ 7,389 $ 6,478

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PNG COMPANIES LLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF, AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED, DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(Dollar amounts are shown in thousands)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

PNG Companies LLC (the "Company"), a Delaware limited liability company, is a wholly owned, direct

subsidiary of LDC Holdings LLC, which is wholly owned by LDC Funding LLC. The ultimate parent in

the ownership chain is SteelRiver Infrastructure Fund North America LP and an affiliated fund. The

Company is primarily a natural gas distribution utility operating in Pennsylvania, West Virginia, and

Kentucky. Wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company include three natural gas distribution companies:

Peoples Natural Gas Company LLC ("Peoples"), which operates under the jurisdiction of the

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, and Peoples Gas WV LLC and Peoples Gas KY LLC, which

are also subject to rate regulation.

The Company's wholly owned subsidiaries also include Peoples Homeworks LLC and PNG

Gathering LLC.

The terms "Company," "we," and "us" are used throughout this report and all represent the Company

and all of its subsidiaries.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the

accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America (GAAP) and include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

General—We make certain estimates and assumptions in preparing our financial statements that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods presented.

Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Accounting for Regulated Operations—The accounting for our regulated gas operations differs from

the accounting for nonregulated operations in that we are required to reflect the effect of rate regulation

in our consolidated financial statements. For regulated businesses subject to federal or state cost-of-

service rate regulation, regulatory practices that assign costs to accounting periods may differ from

accounting methods generally applied by nonregulated companies. When it is probable that regulators

will permit the recovery of current costs through future rates charged to customers, we defer these costs

as regulatory assets that otherwise would be expensed by nonregulated companies. Likewise, we

recognize regulatory liabilities when it is probable that regulators will require customer refunds through

future rates or when revenue is collected from customers for expenditures that are not yet incurred.

Regulatory assets are amortized into expense and regulatory liabilities are amot-tized into income over

the period authorized by the regulator.
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We evaluate whether or not recovery of our regulatory assets through future regulated rates is probable

and make various assumptions in our analyses. The expectations of future recovery are generally based

on orders issued by regulatory commissions or historical experience, as well as discussions with

applicable regulatory authorities. If recovery of a regulatory asset is determined to be less than probable,

it will be written off and an expense will be recorded in the period such assessment is made.

Operating Revenue—Operating revenue is recorded on the basis of services rendered, commodities

delivered, or contracts settled, and includes amounts yet to be billed to customers. Our receivables from

customers at December 31, 2015 and 2014, included $36,548 and $61,567, respectively, of accrued

unbilled revenue, based on estimated amounts of natural gas delivered, but not yet billed, to our utility

customers. We estimate utility unbilled revenue based on historical usage, applicable customer rates, and

weather factors.

The primary types of sales and service activities reported as operating revenue include:

• Regulated gas sales consist primarily of state-regulated retail natural gas sales and related

distribution services;

• Non-regulated gas sales consist primarily of sales of natural gas purchased from third parties at

market-based rates and contracted fixed prices;

• Gas transportation and storage consists primarily of regulated sales of gathering, transmission,

distribution, and storage services. Also included are regulated gas distribution charges to retail

distribution service customers opting for alternate suppliers; and

Other revenue consists primarily of miscellaneous service revenue from gas distribution operations,

~a~ „rr,ceccin~ and handling revenue. sales of natural gas at market-based rates and contracted fixed
a -̂ r--------o

prices, sales of gas purchased from third parties, and other gas marketing activities.

Unrecovered Gas Costs—The differences between actual purchased gas expenses and the levels of

recovery for these expenses in current rates are deferred and matched against recoveries in future

periods. The deferral of costs in excess ofcurrent-period recovery is recognized as a regulatory asset and

classified as unrecovered gas costs, while the recovery of revenue in excess ofcurrent-period expenses

is recognized as a regulatory liability and classified as amounts payable to customers.

Income Taxes—The Company is asingle-member limited liability company treated as a disregarded

entity for United States federal and Pennsylvania state income tax purposes. The Company's taxable

income or loss is included in the federal and state tax returns filed by LDC Funding LLC. The Company

calculates its share of the federal and state tax expense and benefits of LDC Funding LLC based on the

amounts that would be reported if it were to file tax returns on aseparate-company basis.

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Income

Taxes, requires an asset and liability approach to accounting for income taxes. Deferred income tax

assets and liabilities are provided, representing future effects on income taxes for temporary differences

between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax purposes. Where permitted by

regulatory authorities, the treatment of temporary differences may differ from the requirements of

ASC 740. For those temporary differences, a regulatory asset is recognized if it is probable that future

revenues will be provided for the payment of deferred tax liabilities, as a result, only a provision for the

current ta~~ expense is included in the determination of net income. The Company has not identified any

uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2015.
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We establish a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that all, or a portion, of a deferred tax

asset will not be realized. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, no valuation allowances were considered

necessary. Judgment and the use of estimates are required in developing the provision for income taxes

and reporting oftax-related assets and liabilities. The interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty,

since tax authorities may interpret the laws differently. Ultimate resolution of income tax matters may

result in favorable or unfavorable impacts to net income and cash flows, and adjustments to tax-related

assets and liabilities could be material.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company realized a $15.2 million deferred tax benefit in

connection with recent IRS guidance received by the Company regarding the Company's disposition of

certain utility assets in 2013. The 2013 transaction included a partial like-kind exchange of assets that

resulted in tax deferral for the Company. However, in order to be in compliance with the normalization

rules of the Internal Revenue Code, the IRS guidance held that the deferred tax liability associated with

the exchanged regulatory assets should not be considered fot• ratemaking purposes. As a result, dut~ing

2015 the Company recorded a regulatory asset equal to the taxes deferred from the exchange and an

associated income tax benefit. The regulatory asset and deferred income taxes will be reversed when the

utility assets are disposed of in a taxable transaction such as a sale or amortized over the remaining book

lives of the utility assets received in the exchange; in either event increasing tax expense at that time.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Current banking arrangements generally do not require checks to be

funded until actually presented for payment. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, accounts payable

included $6,344 and $5,707, respectively, of checks outstanding but not yet presented for payment. For

purposes of our consolidated statements of cash flows, we consider cash and cash equivalents to include

cash on hand, cash in banks, and temporary investments purchased with an original maturity of three

months or less.

Inventories—Materials and supplies inventories are valued using the weighted-average cost method.

The Company has stoned gas inventory under the weighted-average cost method, which is valued at

$17,077 and $35,854 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Company also has stared gas

inventory used in local gas distribution operations that is valued using the last-in, first-out

(LIFO) method. Under the LIFO method, those inventories were valued at $2,328 and $4,256 at

December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Based on the average price of gas purchased during 2015

and 2014, the cost of replacing the current portion of stored gas inventory exceeded the amount stated on

a LIFO basis by approximately $19,209 and $44,071, respectively. The use of two valuation methods for

stored gas inventories is necessitated by regulatory accounting. The two methods will continue to be

used until the commissions order a change.

Derivative Instruments—We use derivative instruments such as futures, swaps, and forwards to

manage the commodity risks of our business opet•ations.

ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, requires all derivatives, except those for which an exception

applies, to be reported on our consolidated balance sheets at fair value. Derivative contracts representing

unrealized gain positions are reported as derivative assets. Derivative conh•acts representing unY•ealized

losses are reported as derivative liabilities.

Derivative Instruments not Designated as Hedging Instruments—We hold certain nontrading

derivative instruments that are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes. However, to the extent

that we do not hold offsetting positions for such derivatives; we believe that these instruments represent

economic hedges that mitigate exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices. Any nontrading derivatives

not designated as hedges have been executed by order of regulatory bodies. The fair value changes of

those derivatives are deferred on our consolidated balance sheets as a regulatory asset or regulatory
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liability in accordance with ASC 980, Regulated Operations. Any unrealized changes in fair value and

settlements are presented in purchased gas expense in our consolidated statements of income and

comprehensive income. Recovery of these costs is discussed in the unrecovered gas costs section above.

We recognize revenue or expense from all nonderivative energy-related contracts on a gross basis at the

time of contract performance, settlement, or termination.

Derivative Instruments Designated as Cash Flow Hedging Instruments—As of December 31, 2015

and 2014, the Company had designated interest rate swaps with an initial notional amount of $125,000

and $ -, respectively, as cash flow hedges.

Valuation Methods—See Note 3 for further information about fair value measurements and associated

valuation methods for derivatives under ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement.

Property, Plant and Equipment—Property, plant, and equipment, including additions and

replacements, are recorded at original cost, including labor, materials, asset retirement costs, and other

direct and indirect costs, including capitalized interest. The cost of repairs and maintenance, including

minor additions and replacements, is charged to expense as incurred. In 2015 and 2014, we capitalized

interest costs of $197 and $235, respectively.

At retirement, the depreciable cost of property, plant, and equipment, less salvage value, is charged to

accumulated depreciation. Cost of removal collections from utility customers and expenditures not

representing asset retirement obligations (AROs) are recorded as regulatory liabilities or regulatory

assets.

Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment is computed on the straight-line method, based on

projected service lives. In 2015 and 2014, depreciation expense was $48,290 and $49,756, respectively.

Intangible Assets—Intangible assets include predominately internal-use software and related costs

associated with the Company's computerized information systems. These costs have been capitalized in

accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other. In addition to the initial installation of the

Company's computerized information systems, new applications continue to be added and capitalized,

accordingly. Such assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of 10 years for major

systems and five years for other software applications. Related amortization expense was $13,102 and

$10,3 87 for 2015 and 2014, respectively. Amortization expense for each of the next five years is as

follows:

Years Ending
December 31

2016 $ 10,760

2017 10,336

2018 8,750

2019 7,143

2020 6,988

Debt Issuance Costs—In accordance with ASC 31 p, Receivables, debt issuance costs were capitalized

at the time of incurrence and are being amortized into interest expense over the term of the debt

(Note 7).
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Asset Retirement Obligations—We recognize AROs at fair value, as incurred, or when sufficient

information becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the retirement

activities to be performed. These amounts are capitalized as costs of the related tangible long-lived

assets. Since relevant market information is not available, we estimate fair value using discounted cash

flow analyses. We report the accretion of the AROs due to the passage of time in other operations and

maintenance expense.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets—We perform an evaluation for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived assets or

intangible assets with finite lives may not be recoverable. Assets are written down to fair value if the

sums of their expected future undiscounted cash flows are less than their carrying amounts.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as of October 31 for Peoples and whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired. There were no

impairments recorded in 2015 or 2014.

The carrying amounts of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as follows:

2015 2014

Balance as of January 1, $ 284,895 $ 284,895

Accumulated impairment losses
Goodwill acquired

Balance as of December 31, $ 284,895 $ 284,895

Leasing Arrangements—The Company enters into leasing arrangements in the ordinary course of

business. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to expense over the term of the relevant

lease. For capital leases, the present value of future minimum lease payments at the inception of the

lease is reflected as an asset and a liability in the consolidated balance sheets. Amounts due within one

year are classified as current liabilities and the remaining balance as long-term liabilities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements—In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update

(ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue From Contracts With Customers, which outlines a single comprehensive

model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. The ASU

supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The

guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2Q18. The adoption of

this guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial

statements.

In Apri12015, the FASB issued ASU No.' 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs

("ASU 2015-03"). ASU 2015-03 requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the consolidated balance

sheet as a direct deduction from the associated debt liability. ASU 2015-03 is effective for annual

reporting periods after December ] 5, 2015. The new guidance will be applied on a retrospective basis

and early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2015-03 to have a

significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In November 20l 5, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Income

Tax, which revises accounting guidance to simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes. This

update requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in the consolidated
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balance sheet. The new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December• 15,

2018. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's

consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which brings substantially all leases onto the

balance sheet. This update requires the recognition of lease assets and liabilities for those leases

currently classified as operating leases, while also refining the definition of a lease. The new guidance is

effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company is currently

evaluating the impact that the adoption of the standard will have on its consolidated financial statements.

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset

or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date.

We utilize the following fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to

measure fair value, into three broad levels:

Level 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that we have the

ability to access at the measurement date. Instruments categorized in Level 1 are valued at the active

quoted market price from broker or dealer quotations or transparent pricing sources at the reporting date.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no Level 1 instruments.

Level 2—Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly

observable for the asset or liability, including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active

markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, inputs other than

quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and inputs that are derived from observable

market data by correlation or other means. Leve12 measurements primarily represent interest rate swaps

and long-term debt at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, including situations where there is little, if any,

market activity for the asset or liability. Instruments categot•ized in Leve13 would consist of long-dated

commodity derivatives and other modeled commodity derivatives. At December 31, 2015 and 2014,

there were no Leve13 instruments.
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There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2, or 3 during the course of 2015 or 2014. If there were any

such instances, a transfer would be reported at the beginning of the reporting period. While the

Company believes that its valuation methods used to assess the classification of financial instruments

within the hierarchy are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or assumptions could result in a

change in a financial instrument's fair value tier from year to year.

Book Fair Value

At December 31 2015 Value Level 1 bevel 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities:
Derivative:
Interest rate swaps $ 469 $ - $ 469 $ - $ 469

Long-term debt:
Notes payable:
Fixed 700,000 - 715,946 - 715,946

Variable 152,000 - 152,000 - 152,000

Total liabilities $852,469 $ - $868,415 $ - $868,415

At December 31, 2014

Liabilities:
Long-term debt:
Notes payable:
Fixed $825,000 $ - $861,383 $ - $861,383

Variable 97,000 - 97,000 - 97,000

Total liabilities $922,000 $ - $958,383 $ - $958,383

4. INCQME TAXES

Details of the Company's income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as

follows:

2015 2014

Current:
Federal $ 11,262 $ 13,417

State 7,019 4,029

Total current 18,281 17,446

Deferred:
Federal 13,655 31,696

State 2,060 2,475

Total deferred 11,595 34,171

Total income tax expense $ 29,876 $ 51,617
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The statutory U.S. federal income tax gate reconciles to our effective income tax rate for the years ended

December 31, 2015 and 2014, as follows:

U.S. statutory rate
Increases (reductions) resulting from:
Utility plant differences
Private letter ruling
State tax items
Employee benefits
Other

Effective tax rate

2015 2014

35.0 % 35.0

(1.7) (2.0)
(13.1) -

4.3 4.7
1.0 0.1
0.2 (0.5)

25.7 % 37.3

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.

Our net deferred income taxes at December 31, 2015 and 2014, consist of the following:

2015 2014

Postretirement benefits $ 1,284 $ 200

Miscellaneous benefits (12,048) (7,859)

Other 4,950 14

Depreciation method and plant-basis differences 188,137 146,347

Inventory (305) (305)

Income taxes collected through rates 22,819 22,165

Unrecovered purchased gas costs 8,157 22,385

Bad debts (10,940) (11,394)

Pension benefits (6,388) (9,073)

Interest rate swap ~~
Net operating loss 47,645 64,510

Total net deferred income tax liabilities 148,098 97,970

Net short-term deferred tax asset 17,484 6,938

Net long-term deferred tax liability $ 165,582 $ 104,908

At December 31, 2015, we had federal loss carryforwards of $141,211 and state loss carryforwards of

$108,934 that begin to expire if unutilized in 2031. There are no uncertain tax positions as of

December 31, 2015.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUII'MENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Major classes of utility property, plant and equipment and their respective balances at December 31,

2015 and 2014, are as follows:

2015

Transmission
Distribution
Storage
Gas gathering and processing
General and other
Plant under construction

Total property, plant and equipment

$ 158,504
1,841,892

13,569
113,336
124,210
8,859

2014

$ 152,439
1,764,139

13,436
112,052
118,639

8,012

$ 2,260,370 $ 2,168,717

Details of our intangible assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:

2015 2014

Internal-use software
Less—accumulated amortization

$ 102,750 $ 91,001
36,887 28,106

Intangible assets—net $ 65,863 $ 62,895

-16-



6. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Regulatory assets and liabilities at December 31, 2015 and 2014, include the following:

2015 2014

Regulatory assets:
Unrecovered gas costs $ - $ 16,376

Other 9,984 3,267

Regulatory assets--current 9,984 19,643

Income taxes recoverable through future rates 83,533 52,035

Asset retirement obligations 39,675 38,604

Pension/OPEB unrecognized funding costs 2,411 10,468

Other 14,750 15,029

Regulatory assets—non-current 140,369 116,136

Total regulatory assets $ 150,353 $ 135,779

Regulatory liabilities:
Deferred gas—amounts payable to customers $ 24,148 $ -

Other 2,405 2,241

Regulatory liabilities—current 26,553 2,241

D~Suiu~iviy' iiuv;~itii~.~i-iii::-r+~.:rY~;~:t -

Total regulatory liabilities $ 26,553 $ 2,241

The regulatory assets are expected to be recovered in rates charged to customers. The Company's

regulatory assets are not earning a return; however, these regulatory assets are expected to be recovered

from customers in future rates.

If, for any reason, the Company's regulated businesses cease to meet the criteria for application of

regulatory accounting for all or part of its operations, the regulatory assets and liabilities relating to those

portions ceasing to meet such criteria would be removed from the balance sheet and included in the

statements of income as an extraordinary item in the period in which the discontinuance of regulatory

accounting occurs.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had long-term debt, as follows:

Company Type Rates Issue Dates Due Dates 2015 2014

PNG Companies LLC Senior Secured Notes 2.43%-5.53% 2010-2013 2017-2025 $ 700,000 $ 825,000

PNG Companies LLC Credit Agreement Variable 2015 2018 125,000 -

PNG Companies LLC Revolving Credit Agreement Variable 2013 2018 27,000 97,000

Subtotal, long-term debt 852,000 922,000

Current portion of long-term debt

Total long-term debt $ 852,000 $ 922,000

On February 26, 2010, the Company issued $411,000 of Senior Secured Notes under a Note Purchase

Agreement dated February 26, 2010 ("2010 Note Agreement"). On December 19, 2013; the Company

issued $414,000 of Senior Secured Notes under a Supplement to the 2010 Note Agreement, of which the

majority of the proceeds were used in connection with the EGC acquisition. On February 26, 2015, the

Company borrowed $125,000 under a new, three-year credit agreement, which is due February 19,

20l 8.. The proceeds were used to repay a February 2015 maturity under the 2010 Note Agreement. On

August 22, 2013, the Company entered into a Revolving Credit Agreement with a consortium of

financial institutions. The Company is permitted to borrow and repay funds and/or issue letters of credit

up to a total commitment of $300,000 through August 22, 2018, subject to a $50,000 sublimit for letters

of credit. At December 31, 2Q15 and 2014, outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Credit

Agreement were $27,000 and $97,000 and outstanding letters of credit totaled $3,331 and $2,961,

respectively. Under the terms of the agreement, interest rate options include either London InterBank
rc, i r ~ ~_ ~ 7.,.,.1.x,. ~ + ~ 1 n++ ~+...l:.~ol~la mnu~rrin l~µ~~a,~
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upon PNG Companies' credit rating. Commitment fees on the unused portion of the total commitment

are also based upon PNG Companies' credit rating.

As of December 31, 2015, the aggregated future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Years Ending
December 31

2016 ~
2017 255,000

2018 152,000

2019
2020 181,000

Thereafter 264,000

Total $ 852,000
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Covenants and Other Terms—The 2010 Note Agreement, Credit Agf•eement and Revolving Credit

Agreement contain usual and customary negative covenants and require the Company to meet minimum

leverage and interest coverage ratio covenants, and also contain usual and customary provisions

regarding the acceleration of payments. In the event of certain defaults by the Company under these

agreements, the lenders will have no further obligation to extend credit and, in some cases, any amounts

owed by the Company will automatically become immediately due and payable. As of December 31,

2015 and 2014, the Company was in compliance with the covenants under the Note Agreement, Credit

Agreement. and Revolving Credit Agreement.

The Company's obligations under the Note Agreement, Credit Agreement, and Revolving Credit

Agreement are secured by the tangible and intangible assets of the Company, as specified in each

agreement.

The unamortized balances of debt issuance costs were $6,352 and $8,038 at December 31, 2015 and

2014, respectively. Total debt issuance costs amortized or expensed as interest expense during 2015 and

2014 were $2,119 and $2,517, respectively.

Surety Bonds—As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had purchased $5,906 and $6,949, respectively,

of surety bonds to facilitate commercial transactions with third parties.

8. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Our AROs are primarily associated with the interim retirements of natural gas gathering, transmission,

distribution, production wells, and storage pipeline components. These obligations result from certain

safety and environmental activities that we are required to perform when any pipeline is abandoned. We

also have AROs related to the retirement of the gas storage wells in our underground natural gas storage

network. We currently do not have sufficient information to estimate a reasonable range of expected

retirement dates for any of these wells. Thus, AROs for those assets will not be reflected in our financial

statements until sufficient information becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate of the fair

value of the activities to be performed. Generally, this will occur when the expected retirement or

abandonment dates are determined by our operations engineering department. The changes to our AROs

during 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014

Total asset retirement obligations—January 1 $ 38,241 $ 39,347

Liabilities incurred 43 15

Obligations settled during the period (2,276) (3,346)

Accretion expense 2,304 2,225

Total asset retirement obligations—December 31 38,312 38,241

Less: current portion 1,497 1,463

Non-current asset retirement obligations—December 31 $ 36,815 $ 36,778

9. VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

In the fourth quarter of 2015, the Company announced cone-time Voluntary Retirement Program

(VRP), which was offered to eligible union and salaried employees who had 10 years of service and

were at least 55 years of age by April 1, 2016. The union offer was contingent on the ratification of a
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new collective bat~gaining agreement, which was subsequently ratified in Apri12016. (Note 12).

Participants' last day of work will occur as late as October 1, 2016. 82 union and 42 salaried employees

elected to participate in this program. The Company offered each eligible union employee severance of

$108, which will be paid equally over a 24-month period. Each eligible salaried employee will receive

50% of the employee's current monthly salary for a period of 24 months. The Company will also pay

100% of health insurance premiums for' the employee and dependents, payable over a period of

36 months for union and 24 months for salaried employees, beginning with the employee's retirement

date. The Company recorded a total VRP liability of $13,380 during 2015, all of which was reflected in

Other Operations and Maintenance.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company provides certain benefits to eligible active employees, retirees, and qualifying dependents.

Under the terms of our benefit plans, the Company reserves the right to change, modify, or terminate the

plans, unless restricted by collective bargaining. From time to time in the past, benefits have changed,

and some of these changes have reduced benefits.

Strategic investment policies are established for each of the Company's prefunded benefit plans based

upon periodic asset/liability studies. Factors considered in setting the investment policy include

employee demographics, liability growth rates, future discount rates, the funded status of the plans, cash

disbursement requirements, and the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. Deviations from the

plans' strategic allocation are a function of short-term, actual investment results in the capital markets

and/or short-term market movements, which result in the plans' actual asset allocations varying from the

strategic target asset allocations. Through periodic rebalancing, actual allocations are brought back in

line with the target.

Our overall objective for investing our pension and other postretirement plan assets is to achieve the best

possible long-term rates of return commensurate with prudent levels of risk. To minimize risk, funds are

broadly diversified among asset classes, investment strategies, and investment advisors.

The Company uses December 31 as the measurement date for all of the Company's employee benefit

plans. The Company uses the market-related value of pension plan assets to determine the expected

return on plan assets, a component of net periodic pension cost. The market-related value recognizes

changes in fair value on a straight-line basis over afour-year period, which reduces year-to-year

volatility. Changes in fair value are measured as the difference between the expected and actual plan

asset returns, including dividends, interest, and realized and unrealized investment gains and losses.

Since the market-related value recognizes changes in fair value over afour-year period, the future

market-related value of pension plan assets will be impacted as previously unrecognized changes in fair

value are recognized.

Defined Benefit Plans—The Company provides pension benefits for eligible employees, the provision

of which is based upon certain factors, such as job group and hire date. Retirement benefits payable

under all plans are based on certain factors, including hire date, years of service, age, and compensation.

The Company's contributions to the plans are determined in accordance with the provisions of the

Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as well as commitments under rate cases.

The accumulated benefit obligations fot• the Company's defined benefit pension plans were $83,323 and

$90,739 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Under our funding policies, we evaluate plan

funding requirements annually, usually in the fourth quarter after considering updated plan information

from our actuaries. Based on the funded status of the plan and other factors, we determine the amount of

contributions for the current year, if any, at that time.
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Effective December 3l, 2015, the Company's defined benefit pension plan was amended to freeze the

accrual of benefits, with the exception of certain union participants.

Postretirement Benefits—The Company also provides limited postretirement health care benefits and

life insurance benefits ("Postretirement Benefits") for employees, the provisions of which are based

upon certain factors such as job group and hire date.

Retiree health care and life insurance benefits are provided for the Company's union and salaried

employee groups through separately administered other postretirement benefit plans. Annual premiums

for both programs are negotiated as part of the Company's group policies, and are dependent upon

market trends and overall group experience. Annual employee contributions are based on several factors,

such as age, retirement date, and years of service.

The Company, through Peoples, has established Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association

(VEBA) trust for its Postretirement Benefits. Contributions to the VEBA trusts are tax-deductible,

subject to limitations contained in the Internal Revenue Code, and are made to fund employees'

Postretirement Benefits. In accordance with ratemaking standards recognized by the PA Public Utility

Commission, the Company deposits, into an irrevocable trust, amounts equal to the postretirement

benefits expenses determined in accordance with authoritative guidance for postz~etirement benefit plans.

The trust's assets will be used for the payment of postretirement benefits and trust administration costs.

The past retirement benefit plan was amended, effective December 31, 2015. Salaried active employees

hired before January 1, 2008 were converted to a medical savings account (MSA) of $700 for each year

of service through 2015 and retired medical benefits were frozen for active Salaried employees hired on

or after January 1, 2008. In addition, retiree life insurance was discontinued as of December 31, 2015,

with the exception of current retirees. At the end of 2015, eligible participants were given the option to

retire as part of a Voluntary Retirement Program (VRP) during the first half of 2016. Those who elect to

participate in the VRP will receive retiree medical benefits fully paid by the Company for a period of

two years. After two years, employees hired before January 1, 2008 receive subsidized coverage until

age 65.
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The changes in the Company's defined benefit and other postretirement benefit plan obligations and

plan assets, fair value measurements, components of net periodic benefit costs, and expected payments

of future service are as follows:

Periods Ended December 31

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation-beginning of year

Service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Participant contributions
Curtailment gain
Special termination benefits
Actuarial (gain) loss during the year

Benefit obligation-end of year

Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets-beginning of year

Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Expenses paid
Benefits paid
Participant contributions

Fair value of plan assets-end of year

Funded status-end of year

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated

Balance Sheet as of December 31

Current liabilities
Noncun•ent liabilities

Net amount recognized

Defined Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

2015 2014 2015 2014

$ 97,835 $ 79,578 $ 40,308 $ 34,649

2,228 1,818 2,631 2,420

3,938 3,775 1,483 1,485

(5,247) (4,616) (2,815) (2,348)
- - 1,153 78

(6,561) - (1,009) -
- 3,737 -

(g,769) 17,280 (7>723) 4,024

83,424 97,835 37,765 40,308

74,789 73,886 18,422 14,473

(3,207) 4,916 (761) 751

740 740 5,334 5,468

(227) (137) - -
(5,247) (4,616) (2,815) (2,348)
- - 1,154 78

66,848 74,789 21,334 18,422

$ ].6,576 $ 23,046 $ 16,431 $ 21,886

$ - $ - $ (1,820) $ (1,323)

16,576 23,046 1( 4,611) 20,563

$ 16,576 $ 23,046 $ 16,431 $ 21,886

Significant Assumptions Used to Determine

Benefit Obligations as of December 31

Discount rate
Weighted-average rate of increase for compensation

4.63 % 4.28 % 3.96 % 3.73

3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75
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Defined Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

Periods Ended December 31 2015 2014 2015 2014

Fair Value Measurements

Level 1:
Cash equivalents $ 1,888 $ 1,552 $ 6,926 $ 6,127

Equity 40,691 45,248 4,514 3,983

Fixed income 15,940 17,691 9,894 8,311

Subtotal 58,519 64,491 21,334 18,421

Level 2-fixed income 8,329 10,298 - -

Level3

Fair value $66,848 $74,789 $21,334 $18,421

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Costs
Service cost $ 2,428 $ 2,318 $ 2,631 $ 2,420

Interest cost 3,938 3,775 1,483 1,485

Expected return on plan assets (4,569) (4,900) (828) (648)

Curtailment gain - - (1,009) -

Special termination benefits - - 3,737 -

Amortization of prior service cost -
Amortization of net (gain) loss 620 - 41 (183)

Amortization of transition assets -

Net periodic benefit cost $ 2,417 $ 1,193 $ 6,055 $ 3,074

Significant assumptions used to determine periodic cost:
Discount rate 4.63 % 5.18 % 3.96 % 3.73

Expected Iong-term rate of return on plan assets 6.37 6.81 4.37 4.49

Weighted-average rate of increase for compensation 3.75 3.75 3.75 530

Health care cost trend rate - - 5.00 5.00

Long-term asset allocation policy:
Equity 65 % 65

Debt 35 35

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations

recognized in regulatory assets (other comprehensive.

income) (Note 7):
Current year net actuarial (gain) Toss $ (7,527) $16,901 $ (6,135) $ 3,921

Plan amendment - -
Amortization of actuarial loss (620) - (41) 183

Total recognized in regulatory assets (other
comprehensive income) (Note 7) $ (8,147) $16,901 $ (6,176) $ 4,104

Expected 2016 payments for defined benefit plans $ 699 $ 740

Expected Payments of Future Service

2016 $ 4,831 $ 4,248

2017 5,160 4,600

2018 5,387 4,449

2019 5,547 3,624

2020 5,706 3,669

2021-2025 30,725 15,932

401(k) Savings Plans-In addition to the defined benefit plans discussed previously, the Company has

various 401 (k) savings plans for union and salaried employees. Under these 401(k) savings plans,

employees can make voluntary contributions into their individua1401(k) savings plan accounts. The

Company provides matching and non-elective employer contributions to the 401(k) savings plans, as

stipulated in the plan documents. During 2Q 15 and 2014, the Company made contributions to

the 401(k) savings plans in the amounts of $5,341 and $4,534, respectively.
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Beginning in January 2016, the 401(k) savings plans will became the primary retirement savings tool.

Changes have been made to enhance benefits under the 401(k) savings plan in lieu of reduced and frozen

retirement benefits under the defined benefit and postretirement benefits as described above.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, we are involved in legal, tax, and regulatory proceedings before various courts,

regulatory commissions, and governmental agencies. We believe that the final disposition of these

proceedings will not have a material effect on our financial position, liquidity, or results of operations.

Lease Commitments—We lease various facilities and equipment under operating leases. Future

minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases that have initial or remaining lease

terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 2015, are as follows:

Years Ending
December 31

2016 $ 5,360

2017 5,290

2018 5,323

2019 5,368

2020 5,412

Thereafter 21,581

Total $ 48,334

Rental expense totaled $3,433 and $3,574 in 2015 and 2014, respectively, the majority of which is

reflected in other operations and maintenance expense.

Environmental Matters—We are subject to costs resulting from a steadily increasing number of

federal, state, and local laws, and regulations designed to protect human health and the environment.

These laws and regulations affect future planning and existing operations, and can result in increased

capital, operating, and other costs as a result of our compliance, remediation, containment, and

monitoring obligations. We may sometimes seek recovery ofenvironmental-related expenditures

through regulatory proceedings.

We have determined that we previously owned four parcels of land that may have been associated with

former• manufactured gas plant sites. None of the four parcels is under investigation by any state or

federal environmental agency, and no investigation or action is currently anticipated.

Long-Term Gas Supply Obligations—The retail gas supply of the Company is provided by sources on

the interstate pipeline system and from local western Pennsylvania gas well production. The Company

has various interstate pipeline service agreements that provide for firm transportation capacity, firm

storage capacity, and other services and include capacity reservation charges, based upon the maximum

daily and annual contract quantities set forth in the agreements. These agreements have minimum

volume obligations and are transacted at applicable tariff and negotiated rates for periods of up to

20 years.

Investments—Other—In September 2014, the Company committed to invest $3,000 in a regional site

development fund. An investment of $1,051 has been made through 2015, with a commitment of $1,949

remaining.
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12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with ASC 855, Subsequent Events, the Company has evaluated events through Apri128,

2016, the date that these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

In Apri12016, the Company reached a new three-year labor contract agreement with our respective field

unions. The three-year agreement includes a competitive wage and benefits package.

******
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Member of

Peoples TWP LLC
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

Deloitte & Tou<he LLP
One PPG Place, Suite 2600
Pittsburgh, PA 15222-5A33
USA

Tel: +1 412 338 7200
www.deloitte.com

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Peoples TWP LLC (the "Company"), which

comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of income and

comprehensive income, member's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes

to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes

the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

Member of
peloitte 7ouche Tohmatsu 4imited



•. .

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of Peoples TWP LLC as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its

operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

April 28, 2016
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PEOPLES TWP LLC

BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
Customers (less allowance for doubtful accounts of
$1,734 and $2,234 for 2Q15 and 2014, respectively)

Other
Affiliates

Inventories:
Materials and supplies
Gas stored—current portion

Regulatory assets
Deferred income taxes
Other

Total current assets

INVESTMENTS—Other

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT:
Property, plant, and equipment
Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total property, plant, and equipment—net

DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS:
Goodwill
Intangible assets—net
Regulatory assets
Debt issuance costs
Other

Total deferred charges and other assets

TOTAL

2015 2014

$ 3,910 $ 2,336

12,305 21,244
71 214
335 217

734 829
9,687 11,467
1,849 -
3,225 3,668
3,294 1,904

35,410 41,879

293,666 284,868
102,353 96,332

191,31.3 188,536

3,103 3,103
12,749 14,1 S 6
17,300 17,204

570 700
46 46

33,768 35,209

$ 260,491 $ 265,624

(Continued)
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PEOPLES TWP LLC

BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

~n thousands)

2015 2014

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable:
Trade $ 5,887 $ 6,535

Affiliates 754 607

Current portion of long-term debt 5,911 5,909

Accrued interest, payroll, and taxes 4,683 4,183

Regulatory liabilities - ~~~~2
Other 1,309 1,059

Total current liabilities 18,544 20,315

LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 7) 113,909 121,820

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES:
Deferred income taxes 18,942 16,391

Asset retirement obligations 2,250 2,363

Pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities 6,724 6,388

Voluntary retirement program 1,964 -

Other 351 3 52

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 30,231 25,494

Total liabilities 162,684 167,629

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 11)

MEMBER' S EQUITY:
Member's equity 97,807 97,995

Accumulated other comprehensive loss - -

Total member's equity 97,807 97,995

TOTAL $ 260,491 $ 265,624

See notes to financial statements. (Concluded)
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PEOPLES TWP LLC

STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(In thousands)

2015 2014

OPERATING REVENUE $ 85,844 $ 110,621

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Purchased gas 23,178 41,497
Other operations and maintenance 27,488 27,767
Depreciation and amortization 8,931 8,524
Other taxes 1,055 1,389

Total operating expenses 60,652 79,177

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 25,192 31,444

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE}—Net (210) (224)

INTEREST CHARGES 4,804 5,086

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 20,178 26,134

PRQVISION FQR INCOME TA~E~ 8, 66 1Q,454

NET INCOME 11,312 15,680

COMPREHENSIVE GAIN (LOSS) - -

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 11,312 $ 15,680

See notes to financial statements.
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PEOPLES TWP LLC

STATEMENTS OF MEMBER'S EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

~In thousands)

BALANCE—December 31, 2014

Net income

Comprehensive gain

Dividends paid to member

BALANCE—December 31, 2014

Net income

Comprehensive gain

Dividends paid to member

BALANCE—December 31, 2015

See notes to financial statements.

Accumulated
Other

Member's Comprehensive
Equity Income (Loss) Total

$ 97,215 $ - $ 97,215

15,680 - 15,680

14,900 - 14,900

97,995 - 97,995

11,312 - 11,312

11,500 - 11,500

$ 97,807 $ - $ 97,807
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PEOPLES TWP LLC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(In thousands)

2015 2014

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Deferred benefit from income taxes
Changes in:
Accounts receivable—net
Inventories
Regulatory asset/liability—net
Prepaid gas
Prepayments
Accounts payable
Payables to affiliates
Accrued interest, payroll and taxes
Customer deposits
Other

Net cash provided by operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES—Plant construction and other
property additions

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of borrowings under senior notes
Borrowings (repayments) under revolving credit agreement net
Dividends paid to member

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of year

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION—Cash paid
during the year for:
Interest and related charges—excluding capitalized amounts

Significant noncash investing activity—accrued capital expenditures

See notes to financial statements.

$ 11,312 $ 15,680

8,931 8,524
130 130

3,107 1,318

8,965 291
1,874 (4,657)

(5,994) 1,526
- 2,989

(1,332) (1,015)
(372) (2,768)
147 (4,503)

2,464 (1,116)
87 (1,190)

2,064 366

31,383 15,575

1( 0,400) 26,489

1( 0,400) 26,489

(5,909) (5,909)
(2,000) 28,000
11.,500 1( 4,90p)

19,409 7,191

1,574 (3,723)

2,336 6,059

$ 3,910 $ 2,336

$ 3,198 $ 5,033

$ 397 $ 1,063
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PEOPLES TWP LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF, AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED, DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(Dollar amounts are shown in thousands)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Peoples TWP LLC (the "Company"), a Pennsylvania limited liability company, is a wholly owned,

direct subsidiary of LDC Holdings II LLC, which is wholly owned by LDC Funding LLC. The ultimate

parent in the ownership chain is SteelRiver Infrastructure Fund North America LP and an affiliated fund.

The Company. is primarily a natural gas distribution utility operating in Pennsylvania, which operates

under the jurisdiction of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission.

The terms "Company," "we," and "us" are used throughout this report and all represent the Peoples

TWP.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation—The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis

of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America (GAAP) and include the accounts of the Company.

General—We make certain estimates and assumptions in preparing our financial statements that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods presented.

Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Accounting for Regulated Operations—The accounting for our regulated gas operations differs from

the accounting for nonregulated operations in that we are required to reflect the effect of rate regulatio
n

in our financial statements. For regulated businesses subject to federal or state cost-of-service rate

regulation, regulatory practices that assign costs to accounting periods may differ from accounting

methods generally applied by nonregulated companies. When it is probable that regulators will permit

the recovery of current costs through future rates charged to customers, we defer these costs as

regulatory assets that otherwise would be expensed by nonregulated companies. Likewise, we recognize

regulatory liabilities when it is probable that regulators will require customer refunds through future

rates or when revenue is collected from customers for expenditures that are not yet incurred. Regulatory

assets are amortized into expense and regulatory liabilities are amortized into income over the period

authorized by the regulator.

We evaluate whether or not recovery of our regulatory assets through future regulated rates is probable

and make various assumptions in our analyses. The expectations of future recovery are generally based

on orders issued by regulatory commissions or historical experience, as well as discussions with

applicable regulatory authorities. If recovery of a regulatory asset is determined to be less than probable,

it will be written off and an expense will be recorded in the period such assessment is made.

~:~



Operating Revenue---Operating revenue is recorded on the basis of services rendel•ed, commodities

delivered, or contracts settled, and includes amounts yet to be billed to customers. Our receivables from

customers at December 31, 2015 and 2014, included $4,964 and $7,911, respectively, of accrued

unbilled revenue, based on estimated amounts of natural gas delivered, but not yet billed, to our utility

customers. We estimate utility unbilled revenue based on historical usage, applicable customer rates, and

weather factors.

The primary types of sales and service activities reported as operating revenue include:

• Regulated gas sales consist primarily ofstate-regulated retail natural gas sales and related

distribution services.

• Nonregulated gas sales consist primarily of sales of natural gas purchased from third parties at

market-based rates and contracted fixed prices.

• Gas transportation and storage consists primarily of regulated sales of gathering, transmission,

distribution, and storage services. Also, included are regulated gas distribution charges to retail

distribution service customers opting for alternate suppliers.

• Other revenue consists primarily of miscellaneous service revenue from gas distribution operations,

gas processing and handling revenue, sales of natural gas at market-based rates and contracted fixed

prices, sales of gas purchased from third parties, and other gas marketing activities.

Unrecovered Gas Costs—The differences between actual purchased gas expenses and the levels of

recovery for these expenses in current rates are deferred and matched against recoveries in future

periods. The deferral of costs in excess ofcurrent-period recovery is recognized as a regulatory asset and

classified as unrecovered gas costs, whip the r~~overy o~ revenue in excess of current-period expenses

is recognized as a regulatory liability and classified as amounts payable to customers.

Income Taxes—The Company is asingle-member limited liability company treated as a disregarded

entity for U.S. federal and Pennsylvania state income tax purposes. The Company's taxable income or

lass is included in the federal and state tax returns filed by LDC Funding LLC. The Company calculates

its share of the federal and state tax expense and benefits of LDC Funding LLC based on the amounts

that would be reported if it were to file tax returns on aseparate-company basis.

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Income

Taxes, requires an asset and liability approach to accounting for income taxes. Deferred income tax

assets and liabilities are provided, representing future effects on income taxes for temporary differences

between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax purposes. Where permitted by

regulatory authorities, the treatment of temporary differences may differ from the requirements of

ASC 740. For those temporary differences, a regulatory asset is recognized if it is probable that future

t•evenues will be provided for the payment of deferred tax liabilities, as a result, only a provision for the

current tax expense is included in the determination of net income. The Company has not identified any

uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2015.



We establish a valuation allowance when it is mote likely than not that all, or a portion, of a deferred tax

asset will not be realized. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, no valuation allowances were considered

necessary. Judgment and the use of estimates are required in developing the provision for income taxes

and reporting oftax-related assets and liabilities. The interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty,

since tax authorities may interpret the laws differently. Ultimate resolution of income tax matters may

result in favorable or unfavot~able impacts to net income and cash flows, and adjustments to tax-related

assets and liabilities could be material.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Current banking arrangements generally do not require checks to be

funded until actually presented for payment. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, accounts payable

included $195 and $1,061, respectively, of checks outstanding but not yet presented for payment. For

purposes of our• statements of cash flows, we consider cash and cash equivalents to include cash on

hand, cash in banks, and temporary investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or

less.

Inventories—Materials and supplies inventories are valued using the weighted-average cost method.

The Company has stored gas inventory under the weighted-average cost method, which is valued at

$9,687 and $11,467 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Derivative Instruments—We use derivative instruments such as futures, swaps, and forwards to

manage the commodity risks of our business operations.

ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, requires all derivatives, except those for which an exception

applies, to be reported on our balance sheets at fair value. Derivative contracts representing unrealized

gain positions are reported as derivative assets. Derivative cpntracts representing unrealized losses are

reported as derivative liabilities.

Derivative Instruments not Designated as Hedging Instruments—We hold certain nontrading

derivative instruments that are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes. However, to the extent

that we do not hold offsetting positions for such derivatives, we believe that these instruments represent

economic hedges that mitigate exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices. Any nontrading derivatives

not designated as hedges have been executed by order of regulatory bodies. The fair value changes of

those derivatives are deferred on our balance sheets as a regulatory asset or• regulatory liability in

accordance with ASC 980, Regulated Operations. Any unrealized changes in fair value and settlements

are presented in purchased gas expense in our statements of income and comprehensive income.

Recovery of these costs is discussed in the um•ecovered gas costs section above.

We recognize revenue or expense from all nonderivative energy-related contracts on a gross basis at the

time of contract performance, settlement, or termination.

Valuation Methods—See Note 3 for further information about fair value measurements and associated

valuation methods for derivatives under ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement.

Property, Plant, and Equipment—Property, plant, and equipment, including additions and

replacements, are recorded at original cost, including labor, materials, asset retirement costs, and other

direct and indirect costs, including capitalized interest. The cost of repairs and maintenance, including

minor additions and replacements, is charged to expense as incurred. In 2015 and 2014, we capitalized

interest costs of $30 and $44, respectively.
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At retirement, the depreciable cost of property, plant, and equipment, less salvage value, is charged to

accumulated depreciation. Cost of removal collections from utility customers and expenditures not

representing asset retirement obligations (AROs) are recorded as regulatory liabilities or regulatory

assets.

Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment is computed on the straight-line method, based on

projected service lives. In 2015 and 2014, depreciation expense was $7,403 and $7,165, respectively.

Intangible Assets—Intangible assets include predominately internal-use software and related costs

associated with the Company's computerized information systems. These costs have been capitalized in

accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other. In addition to the initial installation of the

Company's computerized information systems, new applications continue to be added and capitalized,

accordingly. Such assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of 10 years for major

systems and five years for other software applications. Related amortization expense was $1,528 and

$1,359 for 2015 and 2014, respectively. Amortization expense for each of the next fve years are as

follows:

Years Ending
December 31

2016 $ 1,641

2017 1,641

2018 1,640

2019 1,403

2020 1,341

Debt Issuance Costs—In accordance with ASC 310, Receivables, debt issuance costs were capitalized

at the time of incurrence and are being amortized into interest expense over• the term of the debt

(Note 7).

Asset Retirement Obligations—We recognize AROs at fair value, as incurred, or when sufficient

information becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the retirement

activities to be performed. These amounts are capitalized as costs of the related tangible long-lived

assets. Since relevant market information is not available, we estimate fair value using discounted 
cash

flow analyses. We report the accretion of the AROs due to the passage of time in other operations and

maintenance expense.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets—We perform an evaluation for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived assets or

intangible assets with finite lives may not be recoverable. Assets are written down to fair value if the

sums of their expected future undiscounted cash flows are less than their carrying amounts.

Goodwill is tested far impairment annually as of Apri130 for the Company, and whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired. There were no

impairments recorded in 2015 or 2014.
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The carrying amounts of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as follows:

Balance as of January 1,

Accumulated impairment losses
Goodwill acquired

Balance as of December 31,

2015 2014

$ 3,103 $ 3,103

$ 3,103 $ 3,103

Leasing Arrangements—The Company enters into leasing arrangements in the ordinary course of

business. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to expense over the term of the relevant

lease. For capital leases, the present value of future minimum lease payments at the inception of the

lease is reflected as an asset and a liability in the balance sheets. Amounts due within one year are

classified as current liabilities and the remaining balance as long-term liabilities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements—In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update

(ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue From Contracts With Customers, which outlines a single comprehensive

model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. The ASU

supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The new

guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The adoption of

this guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs

("ASU 2015-03"). ASU 2015-03 requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a

direct deduction from the associated debt liability. ASU 2015-03 is effective for annual reporting periods

after December 15, 2015. The new guidance will be applied on a retrospective basis and early adoption

is permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2015-03 to have a significant impact

on the Company's financial statements.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Income

Tax, which revises accounting guidance to simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes. This

update requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in the consolidated

balance sheet. The new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,

2018. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's

financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which brings substantially all leases onto the

balance sheet. This update requires the recognition of lease assets and liabilities for those leases

currently classified as operating leases, while also refining the definition of a lease. The new guidance is

effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company is curt•ently

evaluating the impact that the adoption of the standard will have on its financial statements.

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset

or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date.
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We utilize the following fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to

measure fair value, into three broad levels:

Level 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that we have the

ability to access at the measurement date. Instruments categorized in Level 1 are valued at the active

quoted market price from broker or dealer quotations or transparent pricing sources at the reporting date.

At Iaecember 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no Level 1 instruments.

Level 2—Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly

observable for the asset or liability, including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active

markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, inputs other than

quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and inputs that are derived from observable

market data by correlation or other means. Leve12 measurements primarily represent long-term debt at

December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, including situations where there is little, if any,

market activity for the asset or liability. Instruments categorized in Leve13 would consist of long-dated

commodity derivatives and other modeled commodity derivatives. At December 31, 2015 and 2014,

there were no Level 3 instruments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2, or 3 during the course of 2015 or 2014. If there were any

such instances, a transfer wquld be reported at the beginning of the reporting period. While the

Company believes its valuation methods used to assess the classification of financial instruments within

the hierarchy are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or assumptions could result in a change

in a financial instrument's fair value tier from year to year.

Fair Value

At December 31, 2015 Book Value Level 1 eve) 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities—Notes
payable:
Fixed $ 77,820 $ - $ 80,067 $ - $ 80,067

Variable 42,000 _ _ - 42,000 - 42,000

Total liabilities $ 119,820 $ - $ 122,067 $ - $ 122,067

At December 31, 2014

Liabilities—Notes
payable:
Fixed $ 83,729 $ - $ 88,275 $ - $ 88,275

Variable 44,000 - 44,000 - 44,000

Total liabilities $ 127,729 $ - $ 132,275 $ - $ 132,275
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4. INCOME TAXES

Details of the Company's income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as

follows:

2015 2014

Current:
Federal $ 4,217 $ 6,969
State 1,543 2,167

Total current 5,760 9,136

Deferred:
Federal 2,863 1,548
State 243 230

Total deferred 3,106 1,318

Total income tax expense $ 8,866 $ 10,454

The statutory U.S. federal income tax rate reconciles to our effective income tax rate for the years ended

December 31, 2015 and 2014, as follows:

2015 2014

U.S. statutory rate 3 5.0 % 3 5.0

Inct•eases (reductions) resulting from:
Utility plant differences 0.7 0.5

State tax items 8.8 7.4
Employee benefits (0.5) (1.3)
Other (0.1) (1.6)

Effective tax rate 43.9 % 40.0
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.

Our net defet•red income taxes at December 31, 2015 and 2014, consist of the following:

Postretirement benefits
Miscellaneous benefits
Other
Depreciation method and plant-basis differences
Income taxes collected through rates
Unrecovered purchased gas costs
Bad debts
Pension benefits
Net operating loss

Total net deferred income tax liabilities

Net short-term deferred tax asset

Net long-term deferred tax liability

2015 2014

$ (388) $ (3l l)
(1,685) (497)

901 570
21,261 19,570
1,028 1,336
949 (630)

(1,624) (1,$48)
(982) (972)
3,743 4( ,495)

15,717 12,723

3,225 3,668

$ 18,942 $ 16,391

At December 31, 2015, we had federal loss carryforwards of $9,374 and state loss carryforwards of

$7,107 that begin to expire if unutilized in 2032. There are no uncertain tax positions as of December 31,

2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUII'MENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Major classes of utility property, plant, and equipment and their respective balances at December 31,

2015 and 2014, are as follows:

2015 2014

Transmission $ 90,191 $ 87,999

Distribution 175,754 168,798

Storage 6,585 6,497

General and other 20,356 20,026

Plant under construction 780 1,548

Total property, plant, and equipment

Details of our intangible assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:

Internal-use software
Less—accumulated amortization

$ 293,666 $ 284,868

2015 2014

$ 18,817 $ 18,697
6,068 4( ,541)

Intangible assets—net $12,749 $ 14,156
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6. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Regulatory assets and liabilities at December 31, 2015 and 2014, include the following:

2015 2014

Regulatory assets:
Unrecovered gas costs $ 62 $ -
Other 1,787 -

Regulatory assets—current 1,849 -

Income taxes recoverable through future rates 2,478 3,219
Asset retirement obligations 2,940 2,841
Pension/OPEB unrecognized funding costs 7,722 10,137
Other 4,160 1,007

Regulatory assets—non-current

Total regulatory assets

Regulatory liabilities:
Regulatory liabilities—current
Regulatory liabilities—non-current

Total regulatory liabilities

17,300 17,204

$ 19,149 $ 17,204

$ - $ 2,022

$ - $ 2,022

The regulatory assets are expected to be recovered in rates charged to customers. The Company's

regulatory assets are not earning a return; however, these regulatory assets are expected to be recovered

from customers in future rates.

If, for any reason, the Company's regulated businesses cease to meet the criteria for application of

regulatory accounting for all or part of its operations, the regulatory assets and liabilities relating to those

portions ceasing to meet such criteria would be removed from the balance sheet and included in the

statements of income as an extraordinajy item in the period in which the discontinuance of regulatory

accounting occurs.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had long-term debt, as follows:

Company Type Rates Issue Dates Due Dates 2015

Peoples TWP LLC Senior Notes 3.53%-6.99°/a 2001-2013 2016-2023 $ 77,820

Peoples TWP LLC Revolving Credit Agreement Variable 2013 2018 42,000

Subtotal, long-term debt 119,820

Current portion of long-term debt (5,911)

Total long-term debt $113,909

2014

$ 83,729
44,000

127,729

5,909

$121,820
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On June 20, 2013, the Company entered into an amended and restated Note Purchase Agreement ("Note

Agreement") in the amount of $95,546. The notes issued contain various interest rate and maturity dates.

On September 20, 2013, the Company entered into a Revolving Credit Agreement with a consortium of

financial institutions that provides a total commitment of $80,000. The Company is permitted to borrow

and repay funds and/or issue letters of credit up to a total commitment of $80,000 through September 20,

2018, subject to a $10,000 sublimit for letters of credit. At December 3l, 2015 and 2014, outstanding

borrowings under the Revolving Credit Agreement were $42,000 and $44,000 and outstanding letters of

credit totaled $2,293 and $3,088, respectively. Under the terms of the agreement, interest rate options

include either London InterBank Offered Rate rates or the administrative agent bank's prime interest

rate, plus an applicable margin based upon the Company's credit rating. Commitment fees on the unused

portion of the related commitment are also payable under this agreement at rates ranging from 0.2% to

0.4% per year.

As of December 31, 2015, the aggregated future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Years Ending
December 31

2016 $ 5,911

2017 4,091
20 ~ g 46,091

20].9 3,636

2020 3,636

Thereafter 56,455

Total $ 119,820

Covenants and Other Terms—The Note Agreement and Revolving Credit Agreement contain usual

and customary negative covenants and require the Company to meet minimum leverage and interest

coverage ratio covenants and also contain usual and customary provisions regarding the acceleration of

payments. In the event of certain defaults by the Company under these agreements, the lenders will have

no further obligation to extend credit and, in some cases, any amounts owed by the Company will

automatically become immediately due and payable. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company

was in compliance with the covenants under the Note Agreement and Revolving Credit Agreement.

The unamortized balances of debt issuance costs were $570 and $700 at December 31, 2015 and 2014,

respectively. Total debt issuance costs amortized or expensed as interest expense during 2015 and 2014

was $130 in each year.

Surety Bonds—As of December 31, 201 S and 2014, we had purchased $684 and $662, respectively, of

surety bonds to facilitate commercial transactions with third parties.

8. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Our AROs are primarily associated with the interim retirements of natural gas gathering, transmission,

distribution, and storage pipeline components. These obligations result from certain safety and

environmental activities that we are required to perform when any pipeline is abandoned. We also have

AROs related to the retirement of the gas storage wells in our underground natural gas storage network.

We currently do not have sufficient information to estimate a reasonable range of expected retirement

dates for any of these wells. Thus, AROs for those assets will not be reflected in our financial statements

until sufficient information becomes available to determine a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the
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activities to be performed. Generally, this will occur when the expected retirement or abandonment dates

are determined by our operations engineering department. The changes to our AROs during 2015 and

2014 were as follows:

9.

2015 2014

Total asset retirement obligations—January 1 $ 2,486 $ 2,598
Liabilities incurred 12 ~
Obligations settled during the period (279) (286)
Accretion expense 157 167

Total asset retirement obligations—December 31 2,376 2,486

Less current portion 126 123

Noncurrent asset retirement obligations—December 31 $ 2,250 $ 2,363

VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

In the fourth quarter of 2015, the Company announced aone-time Voluntary Retirement Program

(VRP), which was offered to eligible union and salaried employees who had 10 years of service and

were at least 55 years of age by April 1, 2016. The union offer was contingent on the ratification of a

new collective bargaining agreement, which was subsequently ratified in April 2016 (Note 12).

Participants' last day of work will occur as late as October 1, 2016. 19 union and 6 salaried employees

elected to participate in this program. The Company offered each eligible union employee severance of

$108, which will be paid equally over a 24-month period. Each eligible salaried employee will receive

50% of the employee's current monthly salary for a period of 24 months. The Company will also pay

100% of health insurance premiums for the employee and dependents, payable over a period of

36 months for union and 24 months for salaried employees, beginning with the employee's retirement

date. The Company recorded a total VRP liability of $2,711 during 20l 5, all of which was reflected in

Other Operations and Maintenance.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company provides certain benefits to eligible active employees, retirees, and qualifying dependents.

Under the terms of our benefit plans, the Company reserves the right to change, modify, or terminate the

plans, unless restricted by collective bargaining. From time to time in the past, benefits have changed,

and some of these changes have reduced benefits.

Strategic investment policies are established for each of the Company's prefunded benefit plans based

upon periodic asset/liability studies. Factors considered in setting the investment policy include

employee demographics, liability growth rates, future discount rates, the funded status of the plans, cash

disbursement requirements, and the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. Deviations from the

plans' strategic allocation are a function of our short-term, actual investment results in the capital

markets, and/or short-term market movements that result in the plans' actual asset allocations varying

from the strategic target asset allocations. Through periodic rebalancing, actual allocations are brought

back in line with the target.

Our overall objective for investing our pension and other postretirement plan assets is to achieve the best

possible long-term rates of return commensurate with prudent levels of risk. To minimize risk, funds are

broadly diversified among asset classes, investment strategies, and investment advisors.
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The Company uses December• 31 as the measurement date for all of the Company's employee benefit

plans. The Company uses the market-related value of pension plan assets to determine the expected

return on plan assets, a component of net periodic pension cost. The market-related value recognizes

changes in fair value on a straight-line basis over afour-year period, which reduces year-to-year

volatility. Changes in fair value are measured as the difference between the expected and actual plan

asset returns, including dividends, interest, and realized and unrealized investment gains and losses.

Since the market-related value recognizes changes in fair value over afour-year period, the future

market-related value of pension plan assets will be impacted as previously unrecognized changes in fair

value are recognized.

Defined Benefit Plans—The Company has atax-qualified, noncontributory, defined benefit pension

plan (the "Defined Benefit Plan") for union field employees. Effective May 1, 2007, the Defined Benefit

Plan was frozen, such that no additional benefits accrue to eligible participants.

The accumulated benefit obligations for• the Company's defined benefit pension plan was $19,663 and

$20,054 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Under our funding policies, we evaluate plan

funding requirements annually, usually in the fourth quarter after considering updated plan information

from our actuaries. Based on the funded status of the plan and other factors, we determine the amount of

contributions for the current year, if any, at that time.

Postretirement Benefits—The Company also provides limited postretirement health care benefits and

life insurance benefits ("Postretirement Benefits") for employees, the provisions of which are based

upon certain factors such as job group and hire date.

Retiree health care and life insurance benefits are provided for the Company's union and salaried

employee groups through separately administered other postretirement benefit plans. Annual premiums

for both programs are negotiated as part of the Company's group policies and are dependent upon

market trends and overall group experience.

The Company has established a Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association (VEBA) trust for its

Postretirement Benefits. Contributions to the VEBA trust are tax-deductible, subject to limitations

contained in the Internal Revenue Code, and are made to fund employees' Postretirement Benefits. In

accordance with ratemaking standards recognized by the PA Public Utility Commission, the Company

deposits, into irrevocable trusts, amounts equal to the postretirement benefits expenses determined in

accordance with authoritative guidance for postretirement benefit plans. The trusts' assets will be used

for the payment of Postretirement Benefits and trust administration costs.

In 2014, the Company amended its plan so that all spouses receiving medical coverage under the plan

will continue to receive benefits until age 65. Previously, their benefits stopped when the participant

turned age 65, if the participant was older than the spouse.

The post retirement benefit plan was amended, effective December 31, 2Q 15. Salaried active employees

hired before January 1, 2008 were converted to a medical savings account (MSA) of $700 for each year

of service through 2015 and retired medical benefits were frozen for active Salaried employees hired on

or after January 1, 2008. In addition, retiree life insurance was discontinued as of December 31, 2015,

with the exception of current retirees. At the end of 2015, eligible participants were given the option to

retire as part of a Voluntary Retirement Program (VRP) during the first half of 2016. Those who elect to

participate in the VRP will receive retiree medical benefits fully paid by the Company for a period of

two years. After two years, employees hired before January 1, 2008 receive subsidized coverage until

age 65.
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The following tables summarize the changes in the Company's defined benefit and other postretirement

benefit plan obligations and plan assets, fair value measurements, components of net periodic benefit
costs, and expected payments of future service:

Periods Ended December 31

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation—beginning of year

Service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Participant conU~ibutions
Curtailment gain
Special termination benefits
Actuarial (gain) loss during the year

Benefit obligation—end of year

Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets—beginning of year

Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Participant contributions

Other Postretirement

Defined Benefits Benefits

2015 2014 2015 2014

$20,054 $17,185 $ 5,960 $ 7,683

182 358 309 322

795 827 222 336

(1,015) (944) (430) (301)

(552) - (602) -
- 1,638 -

199 2,628 119 2,080

19,663 20,054 7,216 5,960

15,998 15,590 3,627 2,761

704 1,017 (159) 27

330 335 1,100 1,140

(1,015) (944) (430) (301)

Fair value of plan assets—end of year

Funded status—end of year

16,017 15,998 4,138 3,627

$ (3,646) $ 4,056 $ (3,078) $ 2,333

Amounts Recognized in the

Balance Sheet as of December 31

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Net amount recognized

Significant Assumptions Used to Determine

Benefit Obligations as of December 31

Discount rate

Weighted-average rate of increase for compensation

$ - $ - $ - $ -
(3,646 (4,056) (3,078) 2,333

$ (3,646) $ (4,056) $ 3,078 $ 2,333

4.35% 4.07% 4.06% 3.87%

N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Periods Ended December 31

Fair Value Measurements

Level 1:
Cash equivalents
Equity
Fixed income

Subtotal

Level 2—fixed income
Leve13

Fair value

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Costs

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Curtailment gain
Special termination benefits

Amortization of prior service cost
Amortization of net (gain) loss
Amortization of transition assets

Net periodic benefit cost

Significant Assumptions Used to Determine Periodic Cost

Discount rate
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

Weighted-average rate of increase for compensation

Health care cost trend rate

Long-term asset allocation policy:

Equity
Debt

Changes in Pian Assets and Benefit Obligations

Recognized in Regulatory Assets (Other Comprehensive

Income) (Nate 7)

Current year net actuarial (gain) loss

Plan amendment: Curtailment Charges
Amortization of actuarial loss

Total recognized in regulatory assets (other comprehensive
income) (Note 7)

Expected 2016 Payments for Defined Benefit Plans

Expected Payments of Future Service

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025

Other Postretirement

Defined Benefits Benefits
2015 2014 2015 2014

$ 425 $ 655 $ 1,254 $ 1,230

9,856 9,966 627 525
2,653 2,065 593 505

12,934 12,686 2,474 2,260

3,083 3,312 1,664 1,367

$16,017 $15,998 $ 4,138 $ 3,627

$ 182 $ 358 $ 309 $ 323

795 827 222 336

(973) (993) (l63) (129)
- - (69) -
- - 1,635 -

47 74 434 435

896 430 (37) 26
- - - 108

$ 947 $ 696 $ 2,334 $ 1,099

4.35% 4.90% 4.06% 3.87%

6.20 6.50 4.10 4.20

N/A N/A N/A N/A

N/A N/A 7.50 5.00

60% 60%
40 40

$ (84) $ (2,123)

942 -

$ (1,026) $ (2,123)

$ 758

$ 1,246
1,334
1,397
1,390
1,424
7,190

$ 442 $ (1,978)
(534) -
(396) (569)

$ ~8~ $_.(2'547)

$ 893
1,442
1,327
739
344

1,516
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401(k) Savings Plans—In addition to the defined benefit plans discussed previously, the Company has

various 401 (k) Savings Plans for union and salaried employees. Under these 401(k) Savings Plans,

employees can make voluntary contributions into their individua1401(k) Savings Plan accounts. The
Company provides matching and non-elective employer contributions to the 401(k) Savings Plans, as

stipulated in the plan documents. During 2015 and 2014, the Company made contributions to

the 401(k) Savings Plans in the amounts of $1,006 and $916, respectively.

Beginning in January 2016, the 401(k) savings plans will become the primary retirement savings tool.

Changes have been made to enhance benefits under the 401(k) savings plan in lieu of reduced and frozen

retirement benefits under the defined benefit and postretirement benefits as described above.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, we are involved in legal, tax, and regulatory proceedings before various courts,

regulatory commissions, and governmental agencies. We believe that the final disposition of these

proceedings will not have a material effect on our financial position, liquidity, or results of operations.

Environmental Matters—We are subject to costs resulting from a steadily increasing number of

federal, state, and local laws and regulations designed to protect human health and the environment.

These laws and regulations affect future planning and existing operations and can result in increased

capital, operating, and other costs as a result of our compliance, remediation, containment, and

monitoring obligations. We may sometimes seek recovery of environment-related expenditures through

regulatory proceedings.

Long-Term Gas Supply Obligations—The retail gas supply of the Company is provided by sources on

the interstate pipeline system and from local western Pennsylvania gas well production. The Company

has various interstate pipeline service agreements that provide for firm transportation capacity, firm

storage capacity, and other services and include capacity reservation charges based upon the maximum

daily and annual contract quantities set forth in the agreements. These agreements have minimum

volume obligations and are transacted at applicable tariff and negotiated rates for periods of up to

20 years.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with ASC 855, Subsequent Events, the Company has evaluated events through Apri128,

2016, the date that these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

In Apri12016, the Company reached a new three-year labor contract agreement with our respective field

unions. The three-year agreement includes a competitive wage and benefits package.
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